
   Staffordshire Police, Fire and Crime Panel 

 

10:00 Tuesday 12 October 2021  
Council Chamber, County Buildings, Stafford 

 

John Tradewell 
Secretary to the Panel 

Monday 4 October 2021 

 
NB. The meeting will be webcast live which can be viewed here - 

https://staffordshire.public-i.tv/core/portal/home 

 

 
A G E N D A 

 
 

1.  Apologies   
    

2.  Declarations of interest   
    
3.  Confirmation Hearing Procedure (Pages 1 - 4)  
    
 Report of the Secretary to the Panel   

    
4.  10 am Consideration of the proposed appointment to 

the post of Chief Fire Officer for Staffordshire 
(Pages 5 - 52)  

    
 Report and background information, including details of 

the preferred candidate, attached.  
 
To receive representations from the Police Fire and 

Crime Commissioner on the recruitment and selection 
process followed, the criteria to be met by the chosen 

candidate for the post and the suitability of the preferred 
candidate.  
 

To receive a presentation by, and to question, the 
preferred candidate on their skills, experience and ability 

to meet the criteria for the post. 

  

    
5.  11 am Consideration of the proposed appointment to 

the post of Chief Constable for Staffordshire 
(Pages 53 - 112)  

    

 Report and background information, including details of 
the preferred candidate, attached.  
 

To receive representations from the Police Fire and 
Crime Commissioner on the recruitment and selection 

process followed, the criteria to be met by the chosen 
candidate for the post and the suitability of the preferred 
candidate.  

 
To receive a presentation by, and to question, the 

preferred candidate on their skills, experience, and 

  

 



ability to meet the criteria for the post. 
    

6.  Exclusion of the Public and Press   
    
 The Chairman to move:  

 
‘That the public be excluded from the meeting for the 

following item of business which involves the likely 
disclosure of exempt information as defined in the 
paragraph of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local 

Government Act, 1972 indicated below’ 

  

    

 
 

Membership 

 

Lesley Adams Stoke-on-Trent City Council 

Adrian Bowen Co-optee 

Richard Cox (Vice-
Chairman) 

Lichfield District Council 

Stephen  Doyle Tamworth Borough Council 

Ann Edgeller Stafford Borough Council 

Gill Heesom Newcastle-under-Lyme District Council 

Tony Holmes Staffs Moorlands District Council 

Philip Hudson (ESBC) East Staffordshire Borough Council 

Bryan Jones Cannock Chase District Council 

Roger Lees South Staffordshire District Council 

Bernard Peters 
(Chairman) 

Staffordshire County Council 

Keith Walker Co-optee 

 
 

Contact Officer:  Mandy Pattinson  
Email:  mandy.pattinson@staffordshire.gov.uk 

 



 

 

 
STAFFORDSHIRE POLICE AND CRIME PANEL – 12 October 2021 

 
Appointment of Chief Fire Officer and Chief Constable for 

Staffordshire – Procedure for Confirmatory Hearings 
 

Report of the Secretary 
 
Recommendation(s)  

 
That the Staffordshire Police Fire and Crime Panel:  

 
a. Undertake a Confirmatory Hearing for the appointment of a Chief 

Fire Officer for Staffordshire in accordance with the requirements 
of the Fire and Rescue Authority (Police and Crime 

Commissioner) (Application of Local Policing Provisions, 
Inspection, Powers to Trade and Consequential Amendments) 
Order 2017. 

 
b. Undertake a Confirmatory Hearing for the appointment of a Chief 

Constable for Staffordshire in accordance with the requirements 
of the Police Reform and Social Responsibility Act 2011. 

 
c. Makes separate reports and recommendations to the Police Fire 

and Crime Commissioner for Staffordshire on the outcome of the 
Confirmatory Hearings; such reports to be drafted and submitted 
on behalf of the Panel by it’s support officer following 

consultation with the Chairman. 
 

Report 
 
Background  
 

The Policing & Crime Act 2017 makes provision for a Police & Crime 
Commissioner for an area to be the fire and rescue authority for that 

area. This position has applied in Staffordshire with effect from 1st August 
2018.  

 
The responsibilities of a Police, Fire & Crime Commissioner (PFCC) created 

under the 2017 Act includes the function of appointing, suspending or 
dismissing the chief fire officer (SI 2017 No 863 Part 2 Chapter 1 Article 
3.  

 
Section 38 of the Police Reform and Social Responsibility Act 2011 (‘The 

Act’) requires PFCCs to appoint Chief Constables.   Schedule 8 of the Act 

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



 

sets out the procedure to be followed in making an appointment and 

places a duty on the Police Fire and Crime Panel to hold a Confirmatory 
Hearing to consider the suitability of the proposed appointee for the post. 

 
The Panel is required to hold the Confirmatory Hearing within 3 weeks of 

receipt of notification by the PFCC of his preferred candidate.  
 

On 24 September 2021 the Commissioner served notice that his preferred 
candidates were: 

 Chief Fire Officer – Robert Barber 

 Chief Constable – Chris Noble 
 

In accordance with the legislative requirements, your chairman 
subsequently formally asked Mr Barber and Mr Noble to attend this 

Hearing. The Hearing must be held in public however the Panel are 
permitted to adjourn to discuss their views and recommendations in 

private.  The full process is that the Panel:  
 Review the proposed appointment  
 Determine whether it agrees, vetoes or makes certain recommendations 

regarding the proposed appointment  
 Notify the PFCC of its decision and any recommendations  

 Publish its report and recommendations  

 
The purpose of the hearing is to assess the suitability of the candidates 

and to put questions to them.  Both hearing will be conducted in the same 
way. 

 
To assist, the Commissioner is required to provide the following 

information:  
 The name of the preferred candidate  
 The criteria used to assess the suitability of the candidate for the 

appointment  
 Details of how the preferred candidate satisfies the criteria  

 The terms and conditions on which the preferred candidate is to be 

appointed. 
 

Conduct of the Confirmatory Hearing  
 

The recommended procedure for these Hearings mirrors that adopted by 
the Panel at Confirmatory Hearings held to date:  
 Welcome and Introductions by the Chairman/explanation of procedure 

to be followed.  
 PFCC to explain the recruitment/selection procedure followed, why/how 

the preferred candidate meets the criteria for the post and detail the 

terms and conditions for the post. 

Page 2



 

 The Candidate introduces themselves and gives a brief outline of their 

experience. 
 Questions by the Panel to the candidate – to determine professional 

competence/personal independence  
 Panel to adjourn or go into ‘closed session’ to make its decision and 

determine the contents of its report to the PFCC  
 At the conclusion of the meeting, if appropriate - the PFCC and 

candidate to be verbally notified of the decision.  
 

Factors on which the candidate can be evaluated:  
 

Guidance issued by the Local Government Association (LGA) recommends 
that the preferred candidate be questioned and evaluated on:  

 Professional competence – i.e. ability to carry out the role; professional 
judgement and insight  

  Personal Independence – i.e. ability to act in a manner that is   

operationally independent of the PCC where appropriate to the post  

 
NB Questions eliciting background information (eg. past career) are 

acceptable however members are respectfully reminded that the Hearing 
is in public and independent and is not part of the interview process.  
 

 
The decision  

 
The Panel needs to form a view on the professional competence and 

personal independence of the candidate and whether or not they meet the 
minimum standards for the role.  

 
Taking those 3 elements into account the Panel essentially has the 
following options:  
 Where it considers that the candidate meets the required standards and 

is suitable for the post – report its endorsement of the appointment to 

the PFCC  
 Where it considers that the candidate meets the required standards but 

there are queries regarding their suitability – report to the PFCC that an 
appointment be made and, if felt appropriate refer to concerns in any 

recommendations, OR recommend that an appointment is not made.  
(NB for the above 2 bullet points the PFCC can accept or reject the Panels 

recommendations). 
  
 Where it considers that the candidate does not meet the required 

standards – veto the proposed appointment  

(NB in these circumstances the PFCC is prohibited from making the 
appointment)  

 

Page 3



 

The veto or recommendation not to appoint should be used very rarely. A 

decision to veto an appointment has to be agreed by a minimum of two-
thirds of the total membership of the Panel (ie 8 of the 12 members).  

 
As mentioned above, where the veto is exercised the PFCC cannot make 

an appointment. In these circumstances he is required to bring forward a 
reserve candidate for consideration through the Confirmatory Hearing 

system. The process is then repeated. 
 
 

The Panel’s Report and Recommendations  
 

It is intended that the Panel’s report and recommendations will be 
submitted to the PFCC and to the candidate on the next working day 

following the Hearing. The final version will be signed off by your 
chairman. 

 
 

Contact Details 
 

Report Author:   J Tradewell 
Job Title:    Secretary to the Panel  

 
Contact Officer: Mandy Pattinson (mandy.pattinson@staffordshire.gov.uk) 

Page 4



 
 

 
 

Police, Fire and Crime Panel – 12th October 2021 
 

Confirmation Hearing for the appointment of the Chief Fire Officer of 
Staffordshire Fire & Rescue Service 

 
Report of the Staffordshire Commissioner 

 
1. Report summary  
 
1.1 This report recommends the appointment of Rob Barber to the position of 

Chief Fire Officer for Staffordshire. 
 
1.2 A report prepared by Gemma Derrick, Head of HR Business Partnering at 

Staffordshire Police and who assisted in the recruitment and appointment 

process is attached for consideration.      
 
2. Recommendations  
 

2.1 It is recommended that: 
 

a) The Police, Fire and Crime Panel consider fully the findings of the 
attached report by Gemma Derrick and her assurances that the 

selection process for this role has met all legal, internal policies and 
executive best practices; 

 
b) The Police, Fire and Crime Panel confirm the appointment of Rob 

Barber to the role of Chief Fire Officer of Staffordshire on a 
permanent, full time contract with effect from 18th October 2021 on 
a commencing salary of £144,873 per annum. 

 

c) In confirming the appointment the Police, Fire and Crime Panel 
recognise the significant strengths and personal fit that Rob Barber 
has demonstrated.  

 

d) That the Police, Fire and Crime Panel hold me, as the 
Commissioner, to account for ensuring that a robust and effective 
development plan is in place to support the candidate in his new role.  

 

3. Further Detail 
 
3.1 The current Chief Fire Officer, Becci Bryant, retires from her role on 17th  

October 2021. The recruitment to her replacement chief officer has rested 
with Ben Adams, the Police, Fire and Crime Commissioner to undertake. 

 
3.2 The recruitment process has taken place over the last few months and 

Rob Barber, the current Deputy Chief Fire Officer in Staffordshire, has 
been identified as the preferred candidate for the Panel’s consideration. 

 

Page 5

Agenda Item 4



3.3 The attached report has been drafted by Gemma Derrick, Head of 
Business Partnering at Staffordshire Police to provide assurance as to the 

robustness of the recruitment and selection process for the Chief Fire 
Officer role.   

      
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Ben Adams 

Staffordshire Commissioner 
 
 

Contact Officer 

 
Glynn Dixon 
Chief Executive, Staffordshire Commissioner’s Office 
Tel: 01785 232242 

Email: glynn.dixon@staffordshire-pfcc.pnn.gov.uk 
  

Page 6

mailto:glynn.dixon@staffordshire-pfcc.pnn.gov.uk


Report from: Gemma Derrick, Head of Business Partnering at   
                      Staffordshire Police 

 
 

To:             Mr B Adams, Staffordshire Commissioner, Fire and Rescue 
Authority 

                       Police, Fire and Crime Panel Members 
 
 
Selection for the Role of Chief Fire Officer of Staffordshire Fire & Rescue 

Service 
 
 
1. Introduction and Context  

 
1.1 The role of Staffordshire Chief Fire Officer will be vacated by Rebecca 

Bryant when she retires on 17th October 2021. This report recommends 
the appointment of Rob Barber to the position of Chief Fire Officer for 

Staffordshire.   
 
1.2 Working for the Commissioner, the role of the Chief Fire Officer is vital in 

the delivery of the following: 

 

• The Commissioner’s Fire and Rescue Plan 

• The Staffordshire Safety Plan 2020-2024 (the IRMP) 
 

1.3 The Commissioner put in place measures to ensure that the selection 
process undertaken to appoint a new Chief Fire Officer for Staffordshire 
was properly informed by relevant and specialist advisors, who could 
assure him of the transparency, legality and fairness of the process, and 

most importantly the candidates fit against the identified 
competencies/criteria. In doing so the Commissioner used a number of 
specialist advisors during the process, summarised as follows:  

 

1.4 Specialist Advisors  
 

Helen Slimmon – Senior Psychologist, Selection & Assessment, 
from the College of Policing 

 
Helen was responsible for: 

 

• Ensuring provision of independence in the process, (outside of 

Staffordshire People & OD and the Commissioner), by facilitating the 
staff and stakeholder panel process, including personalised 
feedback to each applicant and the interviewing panel.   

• Administering the personality assessments and subsequent 

conversations with all candidates. 

• Providing technical assurance to the panel on the fit of the 
candidates against all professional standards.  

 

 

Page 7



 
 

Glynn Dixon – Commissioner’s Chief Executive 
 

Glynn was responsible for: 
 

• Ensuring that the Commissioner’s requirements were met in terms 
of the recruitment process, business and service outcomes; 

• Ensuring all aspects of the recruitment process were coordinated 
and worked smoothly; 

• Ensuring staff, stakeholders and an independent representative 
were involved in the process.  

 
Gemma Derrick – Head of HR Business Partnering, Staffordshire 

Police.  
 

In conjunction with the Head of Recruitment & Resourcing, Gemma was 
responsible for: 

 

• Preparing the recruitment timeline and agreeing this with the 
Commissioner; 

• Preparing the application and information pack and agreeing this 

with the Commissioner and ensuring this was available to all 
candidates via the chosen recruitment platforms;  

• Advising the Commissioner on the relevant advertising / sourcing 
methods to secure applications for the role in line with the NFCC 

Leadership Framework and general best practice from the College 
of Policing guidance for appointing Chief Officers January 2021 

• Ensuring that the shortlisting of candidates was conducted and 
candidates where measured against the criteria laid down in the role 

profile; and the leadership domains; 

• Providing assurance to the Commissioner as to the transparency, 
fairness and compliance of process, both in terms of compliance with 
legal and internal policies alongside best practice executive 

recruitment techniques.  

• Providing professional HR advice to the interview panel during the 
process 

• Creating this report for submission to the Police, Fire & Crime panel 

on the 12th October 2021 for their information to enable the panel to 
fulfil its duties which is to:  

 

• Review the proposed appointment 

• Determine whether it agrees, vetoes or makes certain 
recommendations regarding the proposed appointment 

• Notify the Commissioner of its decision and any 
recommendations 

• Publish its report and recommendations 
 

  

Page 8



2.    Background 
   

Role Profile  
 

• The role profile (Appendix 1) was reviewed by Ben Adams and 
Glynn Dixon.  The role profile outlines the key requirements of the 

role to form the method on which to test competence.  The role 
profile was agreed as suitable for use. 

 

• In addition to the role profile a candidate pack (Appendix 2) was 

provided which contains comprehensive information about the role 
and Service : 

 
o A foreword that outlined the role of Chief Fire Officer with the aim 

of  exciting candidates to join Staffordshire Fire & Rescue Service 
detailing what was expected from the role allowing candidates to 
pre-select themselves against the role challenges and context 

o A number of documents setting out the priorities of the 

Commissioner and the Service 
o The conditions of service of the role   
o Application form 
o NFCC Leadership Framework 

o Leadership domains  
 
3. Sourcing Candidates 
 

3.1 In line with the best practice from the College of Policing, guidance for 
appointing Chief Officers, the role was advertised for three weeks with a 
closing date of 20th August 2021.    The advertisement (Appendix 3) was 
placed in the media outlined below. 

 
▪ The National Fire Chiefs’ Council website 
▪ Staffordshire Fire & Rescue Website 
▪ Commissioner Staffordshire Website 

▪ In addition to this, the Commissioner wrote to every eligible Chief 
Officer advising them of the impending vacancy following the 
announcement of the retirement plans of Rebecca Bryant. 

 

3.2 The result of the above advertising exercise was that three applications 
were received before the advertised closing date. Two of whom were 
internal, with one external candidate. 

 

4.   Creating a short list  
 
4.1 The three applications were duly assessed by the shortlisting panel which 

was made up of the Commissioner, his Chief Executive and the Head of 

HR Business Partnering focused on the following:  
 

• Did the candidates meet the prior experience and qualifications of 
the role? 

Page 9



• Did the candidates demonstrate in their application a sufficient 
match with the technical requirements of the role? 

• Did the candidates demonstrate in their application sufficient match 
with the personal qualities required for the role? 

 
4.2 The shortlisting panel took place on 25th August 2021 and recommended 

that all three applicants be progressed to the next stage of the process. 
An example of the shortlisting form is attached (Appendix 4) 

 
5. Selection Process 

 
5.1 The Commissioner together with his Chief Executive and the Head of 

Recruitment & Resourcing agreed the formal process for selection. 
 

5.2 A three stage selection process was recommended:  
 

• An internal Staff Panel session 

• An external Stakeholder Panel session 

• Personality Profiling 

• An interview panel (including presentation topic) 
 
5.3 The interview panel was provided with a comprehensive pack of 

information to assist them during the interviews, as follows: 
 

• Role Profile  

• Candidates application forms 

• Applicants pack 
 
5.4 The candidates were invited by way of email dated 27th August 2021 

(Appendix 5) which sets out the stages for the selection process. 

 
6. Internal Staff Panel  
 
6.1 The Commissioner sent an email to all employees inviting them to become 

involved in the recruitment of the new Chief Fire Officer by taking part in 
a Question and Answer session with the three candidates.  This took place 
on 7th September 2021 and was attended by employees of the service. 

 

6.2 The candidates were provided with a briefing for the session in their invite 
to interview email and had been given a topic to introduce and discuss for 
10 minutes.  The following 30 minutes was given over to questions from 
the Staff Panel.   

 
7. External Stakeholder Panel 
 
7.1 The Commissioner invited representatives of external stake holders to 

form a panel where the candidates would introduce and discuss a topic  
followed by a Question and Answer session.  This session took place on 
the 7th September 2021 and was attended by senior stakeholders from 
Staffordshire County Council, Stoke-on-Trent City Council, Staffordshire 

University and Staffordshire Police. 

Page 10



 
 

8.    Personality Testing 
 

8.1 Administered by Helen Slimmon the candidates completed a personality 
profiling questionnaire followed by a one to one interview to validate and 

explore the results. 
 
9.     Selection Panel   
 

 9.1 The final selection panel consisted of:  
 

• Ben Adams – Commissioner 

• Glynn Dixon – Chief Executive 

• Gemma Derrick – Head of HR Business Partnering 
 

9.2 Representatives from the Staff and Stakeholder Panels were invited to 
provide feedback to the Interview Panel on all of the candidates prior to 

the interviews commencing.  This process was facilitated by Helen 
Slimmon from the College of Policing. 

 
10.    Process 

 
10.1  Candidates were provided with topics (Appendix 5) in advance to prepare 

a presentation for all of the panels. The presentation to the interview panel 
(Appendix 6) was evaluated alongside the structured interview questions 

(Appendix 7). 
 
10.2 The interviews were conducted on the basis of the pre-prepared questions 

and the additional ‘probing’ questions asked at the interview were to 

establish a deeper or further demonstration of the competencies. All 
questions were pertinent and relevant to the competencies outlined in the 
role profile. 

 

11.    Conclusion 
 
11.1 The wash up session of the panel concluded that overall, Rob Barber most 

closely met the requirements for the role of Chief Fire Officer of 

Staffordshire.  The final interview panel was assured, before reaching their 
final decision of:  
 

• Technical fit by way of a suitably qualified person  

• Personal qualities, behaviours, competencies and overall fit for 
Staffordshire Fire & Rescue Service 

• Business acumen and service delivery 

• Competency fit by way of suitably qualified person 

 
11.2 The outcome of the final interview panel was to recommend that the 

Commissioner appoint Rob Barber to the post subject to medical and 
vetting clearance and suitable references.  Further confirmation by the 

Police, Fire and Crime Panel will be required. 

Page 11



 
 

12    Recommendation  
 
12.1 Having taken all specialist advice and considered the opinions and views 

of all Panels, it is the Commissioner’s recommendation that the candidate 

be appointed subject to confirmation by the Police, Fire and Crime Panel. 
 
12.2 That Rob Barber be appointed on a permanent full time basis on a salary 

of £144,873 per annum. 

 
 

Appendices (titles) 
 

1. Role Profile 
2. Candidate pack 
3. Advertisement  
4. Shortlisting form 

5. Invite to interview email 
6. Presentation topic 
7. Interview questions 

 

 
 
 

Page 12



 

 

CHIEF FIRE OFFICER and HEAD OF PAID SERVICE 
 

Staffordshire Commissioner Fire and Rescue Authority  
 
Role Profile  
 

Role Purpose 
 

• The Chief Fire Officer and Head of Paid Service is responsible and 
accountable to the Staffordshire Commissioner Fire and Rescue 

Authority (CFRA). The core purpose of the role is to advise the CFRA in 
the provision of an effective and efficient Fire and Rescue Service, 
delivering its services in accordance with all statutory, legal and other 
obligations. 

 

• Together with the CFRA Chief Executive, Monitoring Officer and Chief 
Finance Officer, the Chief Fire Officer will ensure that the Authority is  
discharging all Fire and Rescue responsibilities imposed on it by statute 

and guidance and contributing to the broader community safety agenda. 
The Chief Fire Officer and the Fire and Rescue Service will work with 
the Staffordshire Commissioner’s Office in ensuring that there is an 
effective and efficient approach in meeting these responsibilities and 

expectations.   
   

• The Chief Fire Officer and Head of Paid Service is responsible for 
providing strategic leadership, direction, coordination and effective 

management of people and resources within the Fire and Rescue 
Service to ensure the highest standards of direct service provision 
across Staffordshire. In doing so the role will ensure appropriate 
corporate policies are put in place to comply with this measure.   

 

• The Chief Fire Officer is responsible for effective working with 
stakeholders and other partners to develop and deliver the vision, 
priorities and objectives of the Fire and Rescue Service and to meet 

broader community safety requirements. 
 
Key Responsibilities 
 

1. To advise the CFRA in the discharge of statutory duties and 
expectations within the Fire and Rescue Services Act 2004, the National 
Framework and other relevant legislation and guidance.  To be 
accountable to the CFRA, having due regard to such legislation and 

guidance.  To act as the professional advisor to the CFRA for all matters 
relating to the Fire and Rescue Service. 

 
2. To ensure that the requirements of the Regulatory Reform (Fire Safety) 

Order 2005, as they apply to the CFRA, are fully met. 
  

Page 13



 

 

3. To keep under review and determine the requirements of legislation and 
guidance to the Service and ensure that they are a met in accordance 

with the CFRA’s Fire and Rescue Plan and agreed determinations.   
 

4. To take overall responsibility for and to engender a safety culture 
throughout the Service, ensuring compliance with Health and Safety 

requirements and good practice to assist the CFRA in discharging its 
statutory duties. 
 

5. To support the CFRA’s Office in the development of the Fire and Rescue 

Plan. 
 

6. To take responsibility for the preparation and drafting of the Fire and 
Rescue Statement on behalf of the CFRA and in consultation with the 
Commissioner’s Office. 

 

7. To discharge the obligations and duties described in the Home Office 
Financial Management Code of Practice 2018. 

 
8. To  provide professional advice to the CFRA that the requirements in 

relation to National Resilience Capabilities are sufficient, effective and 
maintained at a state of operational readiness. To engage with and 
support the National Coordination and Advisory Framework (NCAF). 

 

9. To provide professional advice to the CFRA in the determination of the 
resources required to sustain and deliver the Fire and Rescue Service 
to meet the agreed strategic aims and objectives of the CFRA’s Fire and 
Rescue Plan and the Integrated Risk Management Plan (IRMP). 

 
10. To lead the development and implementation of the IRMP ensuring that 

business planning frameworks, strategies and business continuity 
planning are in line with good practice.  

 
11. Provide visible leadership and strategic direction within the Fire and 

Rescue Service and ensure that senior management and staff are well 
led and effectively managed. 

 
12. To effectively manage the Fire and Rescue Service budget secured by 

the CFRA for the purposes of fulfilling the statutory and legal duties 
conferred upon it. To ensure resources are utilised effectively, efficiently 

and in a sustainable manner to secure value for money in the 
deployment of those resources.  

 
13. Establish effective governance arrangements within the Fire and Rescue 

Service underpinned by robust policies that demonstrate adherence to 
The Nolan principles’. 
  

Page 14



 

 

14. To ensure mechanisms are established to effectively monitor and report 
on operational and organisational performance. To evaluate 

opportunities for the continuous improvement of the Service against 
agreed strategies, policies and plans. 

 
15. Foster and maintain high quality industrial relations with the respective 

bodies that represent the Service’s employees and ensure appropriate 
policies exist to ensure compliance with standards of behaviour and 
codes of conduct from all staff. 
  

16. To be available outside of normal working hours to provide the effective 
operational and organisational leadership and management of a 24/7 
emergency response service; to operate as a Brigade Manager within 
the National Incident Command System providing out of hours cover as 

a gold commander; to work with the Local Resilience Forum and to be 
held to account for ensuring the responsibilities contained within the Civil 
Contingencies Act are met. 
 

17. To provide strategic support and advice to other incidents and  events 
that present a significant risk to the community and environment  and 
liaise with key personnel from other agencies or Services to ensure their 
effective management and resolution.  

 
18. Ensure the Service and its resources are available to respond, within 

legal requirements to any emergency that might occur within the 
designated area. 

 
19. Provide leadership and influence at national, regional and local level by 

representing the CFRA and the Service, engaging and working with the 
National Fire Chiefs Council and other forums. 

 
20. To proactively seek, develop and implement collaborative working 

opportunities that met the requirements of the Policing and Crime Act 
2017. To work strategically with other partners to deliver inter-operability 

and intra-operability in order to deliver improved service to communities.  
 

21. To work with the Staffordshire Commissioner’s Office in ensuring an 
efficient and effective approach to strategy, service planning and 
delivery, resource management, performance, partnership working and 
governance.    

 
22. To manage all Fire and Rescue Service employment matters on behalf 

of the CFRA and establish appropriate policies to ensure that the current 
and future needs of the Fire Authority and its employees are met.  

 

Page 15



 

 

Brigade Manager Role Map 

In addition to these general qualities required of a Chief Fire Officer, the post 

holder is subject to the Fire and Rescue Service Brigade Manager Role Map. 

Brigade Manager Role Map 
 

EFSM1 Provide strategic advice and support to resolve operational 
incidents 

 

EFSM4 Plan organisational strategy to meet agreed aims and objectives 
 

EFSM5 Plan implementation of organisational strategy to meet objectives 
 

EFSM7 Evaluate organisational performance against agreed measures 
 

EFSM8 Lead organisational strategy through effective decision making 
 

EFSM13 Select required personnel 
 

EFSM14 
 

Manage the performance of teams and individuals to achieve 
objectives 

 
EFSM15 Develop teams and individuals to enhance work based 

performance 
 

EFSM16 Manage yourself to achieve work objectives 
 

EFSM20 Exchange information to ensure effective service delivery 
 

 

Education, Qualifications, Operational Skills and Experience 

Essential: Desirable: 

• Successful completion of the Strategic 

Incident Command Level 4 or 

equivalent.     

• Multi Agency Gold Command (MAGIC)        

• Proven relevant experience of 

leadership within a Fire and Rescue 

Service including a minimum of 3 years’ 

experience in the strategic 

management of critical incidents 

• Has held rank of Area Manager or a 

more senior rank in a UK Fire Service 

(or have held one of the comparable 

roles if appointed from overseas)  

• Successfully completed a senior 
management development programme 

such as the fire service Executive 

Leadership Programme or equivalent.   

Page 16

http://www.skillsforjustice-cp.com/viewrole.php?id=20


 

 

• Education to degree level in a relevant 

subject area or equivalent professional 

qualification appropriate to the post.   

• Evidence of Continuous Professional 

Development 

• A demonstrable track record of 

successful experience of working at a 

strategic level, including the leadership 

of staff at senior leadership level. 

• Experience of successfully engaging 

with and influencing multi-agency 

partnerships 

• Demonstrate knowledge of the 

statutory role, powers and 

responsibilities of the Fire and Rescue 

Service 

• Experience of implementing successful 

organisational development, change 

and innovation. 

• A successful track record of actively 

promoting diversity and a genuine 

commitment to equality.   

• Ability to demonstrate high level of 

emotional intelligence and self-

awareness 

• Ability to communicate clearly and 

effectively in interpersonal relations, 

industrial relations and with the media, 

both verbally and written.   

• Able to operate with high levels of 
commercial acumen, skilled in effective 

organisational financial and budgetary 

management which balances conflicting 

resource demands and drives value for 

money. 

• Up to date operational/technical fire 

service knowledge. 

• Knowledge of developing legal, 

political, economic, social, 

• Knowledge of the current change 

agenda within the Fire and Rescue 

Service at local and national level and 

its strategic implications.   

 

Page 17



 

 

technological, and environmental 

factors and an understanding of the 

implications for strategic planning. 

• Able to operate with high levels of 

political astuteness, skilled in impacting 

the internal and external political 

landscape effectively. 

• Skilled in building and maintaining 

strategic stakeholder relationships at 

the most senior levels, being able to 

resolve issues and to reconcile conflicts 

of interest. 

• Able to reflect on and hold themselves, 
individuals and the organisation to 

account for performance and 

behaviours. 

• Knowledge of relevant local, regional 

and national policies, strategies and 

initiatives and an understanding of the 

implications within the fire service 

context. 

 

 

 
 

 

 

Page 18



 

 
 

Page 1 of 5 

 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Chief Fire Officer / Head of Paid Service  
Candidate Information Pack 

July 2021 

 

Page 19



 
INTRODUCTION  
 
Dear Candidate  

Thank you for your interest in our forthcoming selection process for the Chief Fire Officer / Head of Paid 
Service role. 

Staffordshire Fire & Rescue Service has an excellent reputation and has consistently shown itself to be 
capable of adapting to changing need and circumstances, both in meeting its statutory requirements 
and in working in partnership with other organisations around the wider landscape.     

I want that approach to continue, but also understand the challenges faced by all Fire and Rescue 
services in looking forwards, whether these be as a result of changing service requirements, finances, 
or government-led change.  

In these times, the need for exceptional senior leadership is obvious and I am looking for an exceptional 
candidate that can build from the strong position that our current Chief Fire Officer, Becci Bryant will 
leave when she retires later this year.  

I make no apology for the high standards that I expect of the Service and the thoughtful, strategic and 
cohesive leadership that must come with that. If you think you are ready for this challenge, then we 
would welcome an application from you and wish you every success in the selection process.  

 
Ben Adams 
Police, Fire and Crime Commissioner for Staffordshire 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Page 2 of 5 

Page 20



 
CHIEF FIRE OFFICER / HEAD OF PAID SERVICE ROLE 
 
About the role 
 
The Chief Fire Officer / Head of Paid Service has overall responsibility for leading Staffordshire Fire and 
Rescue. They will have a strong focus on performance, driving efficiencies and transforming the service 
delivery operations to provide best value for money for the community of Staffordshire.   
 
The Chief Fire Officer / Head of Paid Services is ultimately accountable for the statutory obligations and 
duties (under the Fire and Rescue Services Act 2004 and other Statutory Instruments, Guidelines and 
Regulations), including current statutes and regulations relating to fire safety and fire prevention.   
 
The Police, Fire and Crime Commissioner will also be looking for an individual who is genuinely 
committed to staff engagement, diversity and inclusion and who will be able to influence others whilst 
ensuring the Service has strong leadership to shape and direct service provision and uphold the existing 
high standards of performance that exist. 
 
The Chief Fire Officer will need to lead the organisation across all aspects, both operationally and 
ensuring best value for public money through responsible budget and workforce management and 
development. They will use evidence based decision making, to deliver measureable benefits working 
closely with key stakeholders to deliver effective solution based initiatives.  They are responsible for 
influencing the development of regional and national policing and may be accountable for national 
operations or standard setting.  
 
The Chief Fire Officer will be required to undertake operational duties and be available on call as agreed.  
Consequently you will need to have a suitable base within the County or bordering the County in order 
to respond to operational incidents in a timely fashion.   
 
The successful candidate will possess a detailed understanding of the issues relating to the fire and 
rescue service at national and local levels, have excellent political awareness and be an inspiring and 
outstanding leader. Candidates will also need to demonstrate resilience and excellent interpersonal 
skills and the ability to execute ambitious programmes of change. 
 
View the full CFO role profile. 
 
The successful candidate will be expected to deliver against the Commissioner’s Fire and Rescue Plan 
(currently under review) and the Service’s Corporate Safety Plan 2020 - 2024.   

 
 

Page 3 of 5 

Page 21

https://www.staffordshirefire.gov.uk/careers/chief-fire-officer-recruitment/chief-fire-officer-role-profile/
https://www.staffordshirefire.gov.uk/your-service/our-safety-plan-2020-2024/


 
Selection Process  
 
The closing date for the application is noon on Friday, 20th August 2021 . Completed application forms 
should be marked private and confidential and emailed to Glynn Dixon, Chief 
Executive; glynn.dixon@staffordshire-pfcc.pnn.gov.uk.   
 
Candidates who would like an informal discussion with either Ben Adams, Police, Fire and Crime 
Commissioner or Glynn Dixon, Chief Executive should contact Lyndsey Pajor on 01785 232270 or via 
email; lyndsey.pajor@staffordshire-pfcc.pnn.gov.uk.   
 
In addition, visits to the Service can be facilitated to enable candidate to engage with colleagues across 
the Service and to gain an insight to the culture of Staffordshire Fire and Rescue.  Please contact Lyndsey 
Pajor should you wish to make suitable arrangements.   
 
Application forms will be considered by the Police, Fire and Crime Commissioner and the shortlisting 
panel.  Evidence will be drawn from the Application form including how you meet the criteria set out in 
the NFCC Leadership Framework and the skills as detailed in the Role Profile.    
 
Applicants values are considered and assessed at every stage of the selection process as detailed in the 
NFCC Leadership Framework and the Core Code of Ethics which outline the expected standards of 
behaviour.   
 
Please be advised of the key dates for the process below.  Should you progress to interview stage it is 
important that you make every effort to attend the scheduled dates.  Please note that the current dates 
may be subject to change taking into consideration the changing environment due to COVID-19 
arrangements.  Should this be necessary we will endeavour to give as much notice as possible.   
 
Shortlisted applicants will be informed no later than 27th August 2021, if successful you will be invited 
to undergo a Personality Assessment, we anticipate this to take place week beginning 30th August 2021.   
 
Candidates will then be invited to participate in Stakeholder / Staff Panels on the Tuesday, 7th 
September 2021 followed by a formal interview on the Wednesday, 8th September 2021.  
 
Should there be a requirement and with prior agreement, the PFCC will make suitable arrangements to 
cover the costs of any reasonable and necessary expenses of candidates who are invited to interview.   
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Page 4 of 5 

Page 22

mailto:glynn.dixon@staffordshire-pfcc.pnn.gov.uk
mailto:lyndsey.pajor@staffordshire-pfcc.pnn.gov.uk
https://www.nationalfirechiefs.org.uk/write/MediaUploads/NFCC%20Guidance%20publications/Workforce/NFCC_Leadership_Framework_Final.pdf
https://www.staffordshirefire.gov.uk/careers/chief-fire-officer-recruitment/chief-fire-officer-role-profile/
https://www.ukfrs.com/sites/default/files/2020-10/ProposedCoreCodeofEthics.pdf%23:%7E:text=Core%20Code%20of%20Ethics.%20The%20FRS%20Core%20Code,what%20good%20practice%20by%20all%20employees%20of%20the


 
TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 
For full conditions of service, please click here. 
 
  
Post :  Chief Fire Officer / Head of Paid Services  

 
Accountable to :  The Police, Fire and Crime Commissioner for 

Staffordshire  
 

Location :  Staffordshire Fire and Rescue 
Pirehill 
Stone 
Staffordshire 
ST15 0BS 
  

  

 
 
 
 
If you have any further questions regarding the selection process of the role, please address these to: 
Glynn Dixon, Chief Executive, Staffordshire Police, Fire and Crime Commissioner’s Office, PO Box 3167, 
Stafford, ST16 9JZ.   
 
Contact details: Tel 01785 232270 or email: glynn.dixon@staffordshire-pfcc.pnn.gov.uk 
 

 
 

Page 5 of 5 

Page 23

https://www.staffordshirefire.gov.uk/careers/chief-fire-officer-recruitment/chief-fire-officer-conditions-of-service/
mailto:Lyndsey.pajor@staffordshire-pfcc.pnn.gov.uk


          
 
 
 
Chief Fire Officer / Head of Paid Service of Staffordshire Fire and Rescue Service 
 
Salary circa: £144,873 
 
Location: Staffordshire Fire and Rescue, Pirehill, Stone, Staffordshire, ST15 0BS 
 
Staffordshire’s Police, Fire and Crime Commissioner is recruiting a Chief Fire Officer / Head of Paid Service 
who can lead Staffordshire Fire and Rescue over the next few years, developing and transforming the 
Service in the face of significant national challenges that need to be responded to, whilst ensuring the 
continued delivery of a first-class emergency response to fires, other emergencies and to local 
communities. 
 
The successful candidate will be an excellent strategic leader, able to bring forward thinking and solutions 
that maintain the reputation that the Service has, whilst addressing challenges. They will lead the 
Principal Officer Team, oversee the activities of the Service’s directorates, lead on fire service integration 
and collaboration with partners and deliver against the Commissioner’s Fire and Rescue Plan and the 
Service’s Safety Plan.   
 
If you can bring that approach alongside a collective focus and leadership style that embeds the right 
culture to help achieve sustainable and modern ways of delivering fire and rescue services, then we 
would welcome your interest.  
 
Applicants will need to have a minimum of three years’ experience of operating in a strategic role along 
with experience of leading across a multi-agency environment.  The role is an operational post and 
applicants’ will need to be operationally competent.  Applicants will have full Incident Command L4 and 
Multi-Agency Gold Incident Command Strategic Command accreditations, or be in the process of 
obtaining these.  The successful applicant will also form part of the continuous Principal Officer Gold 
Rota. Ideally candidates should have completed the Executive Leadership Programme, or equivalent 
strategic leadership programme, or be working towards this.  
 
Ben Adams 
Police, Fire and Crime Commissioner for Staffordshire 
 
 
For an application form and information pack, please click here. 
 
Closing date for applications: 20th August 2021 
 
 
 
 

Page 24

https://www.staffordshirefire.gov.uk/careers/chief-fire-officer-recruitment/


 

 
Appointment of Chief Fire Officer/ Head of Paid Services         
Shortlisting Form 

 
 
 

     Candidate:                      Ref Number:                            Assessor:  
 

 
TO WHAT EXTENT HAS THE CANDIDATE 

DEMONSTRATED 
 

 
Not at all 

(0) 

 
Limited 

(1) 

 
Reasonable 

(2) 

 
Significant 

(3) 

Proven relevant experience of leadership within a Fire 
and Rescue Service including a minimum of 3 years’ 
experience in the strategic management of critical 
incidents 

    

Experience of working in a multi-agency environment     

Incident Command L4 and Multi-Agency Gold Incident 
Command Strategic Command accreditations, or in the 
process of obtaining these 

    

Experience of successfully engaging with and 
influencing multi-agency partnerships 

    

Experience of implementing successful organisational 
development, change and innovation. 

    

P
age 25



 

A successful track record of actively promoting diversity 
and a genuine commitment to equality. 

    

Personal Impact:  
Demonstrates personal integrity and an ability to self-
manage. Uses leadership to create a positive, open-
working environment focusing on ethics and wellbeing. 

    

Outstanding Leadership: builds high-performing teams 
and develops people to their full potential. Fosters an 
open and honest environment building collaborative 
working partnerships.  

    

Organisational Effectiveness: Drives the mission and 
organisational plans making decisions that are beneficial 
to the customer.  
Uses leadership to continuously improve, innovate and 
change. 

    

Service Delivery: Focussed on delivering high quality 
services now and into the future. 
Uses intelligent problem solving with an outcome 
focussed approach, to ensure continuous improvement 
and value for money to our customers.  

    

The Office of the Police and Crime Commissioner 
participates in the Interview guarantee scheme.  Is 
the applicant disabled? 
 
If the answer is yes please ensure that you make the 
Recruitment Team aware. 
 

 
Yes             

No                      

 Has the applicant declared any convictions or out-
standing financial issues? 
 
If the answer is yes please ensure that you make the 
Recruitment Team aware 

 

 

Yes             

No                         

 

P
age 26



From: Helen Brunjes  
Sent: 25 August 2021 18:12 
To: Rob.barber@staffordshirefire.gov.uk 
Subject: Staffordshire Chief Fire Officer - Shortlisting Result  
 
Dear Rob 
 
On behalf of the Staffordshire Commissioner’s Office I would like to say thank you for 
considering and applying for the Staffordshire Chief Fire Officer position.  
 
As you may be aware the Shortlisting Panel have met today to discuss your 
application.  I am pleased to inform you that you have been successful and will be 
invited to take part in the next stages of the selection process, which are detailed 
below.  
 
Personality Assessment  
 
The College of Policing have now been sent your contact details that you provided 
on your application form, and will be in contact direct regarding this part of the 
process.  
 
Staff and Stakeholder Panels – 7 September 2021  
 
This will take place at Staffordshire Police Headquarters, which is the base for the 
Commissioner’s office. Confirmation of times and location details will be confirmed 
next week.  
 
You will take part in two panels; one with staff and the other with the stakeholder 
group. So that you can prepare in advance of the above date, please find below the 
subject matters you will be required to brief the panels on.  You will allowed 10 
minutes to brief the panels and they will then have 20-30 minutes to ask you 
questions. You can present verbally or if you would like to use presenting tools 
please let me know.  
 
 
Staff Panel Briefing Topic:  
 
Over the next 5 years Staffordshire Fire & Rescue service is facing a period of 
unprecedented change at both a national and local level. How will you lead on this 
change and ensure that you take staff with you on that journey? 
 
 
Stakeholder Panel Briefing Topic:  
 
How will you ensure that Staffordshire Fire and Rescue Service works collaboratively 
with partners to deliver community safety outcomes and enhance service delivery? 
 
 
Formal Presentation and Interview – 8 September 2021  
 

Page 27

mailto:Rob.barber@staffordshirefire.gov.uk


You will need to report to Staffordshire Police Headquarters, Stafford. Your time and 
details of panel members will be shared with you next week.  
 
Formal Presentation to Interview Panel:  
 
What are the main challenges facing Staffordshire Fire & Rescue Service in the next 
3 to 5 years and how will you address these challenges? 
 
You will have 10 Minutes to present to the panel and the panel will then have a 
further 20 -30 minutes to ask you questions around your presentation. PowerPoint 
facility will be available for you to use. If you require any other presenting tools 
please can you advice ASAP. Once the presentation stage has concluded you will 
move onto the formal Interview stage of the process. Your presentation will need to 
be sent to Graham Bradley,  Graham.Bradley@staffordshire.pnn.police.uk by no 
later than 0900 hrs on Monday 6 September 2021.  
 
 
Ahead of any of the above stages, if you have any concerns, special requests or 
adjustments please can you email Graham Bradley, Recruitment 
Manager  Graham.Bradley@staffordshire.pnn.police.uk who will ensure we can 
facilitate any requests you may have.  
 
In the meantime if you have any questions please do not hesitate to contact me. 
  
 
 
 
Kind regards, 
 
Helen Brunjes  
People Services  

 
Recruiting – Police Promotions / Police Transferee / Internal Police Vacancies  
Staffordshire Police | Staffordshire Fire and Rescue Service 
Phone: 01785 234077       Mobile: 07793389510 
Helen.Brunjes@staffordshire.pnn.police.uk 
 
 

Page 28

mailto:Graham.Bradley@staffordshire.pnn.police.uk
mailto:Graham.Bradley@staffordshire.pnn.police.uk
mailto:Helen.Brunjes@staffordshire.pnn.police.uk


 

Chief Fire Officer – Presentation  

Formal Presentation to Interview Panel 

 

 

The candidate has 10 Minutes to present followed by 20 minutes of questions from the panel.  

Subject  

What are the main challenges facing Staffordshire Fire & Rescue Service in the next 3 to 5 years 
and how will you address these challenges? 

 

Notes 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Candidate name: 
 

 

Date: 
 

 

Panel member: 
 

 

Page 29



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 30



 

Please use the scoring criteria below to evaluate the candidate’s responses.  

 

 

Overall Score  

 

Feedback 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Scoring Sheet 
Score Definition 
1 Evidence is vague, with serious shortcomings in the quality of 

the response provided.  Overall response falls below the 
required standard. 

2 Evidence is limited. Responses were patchy and below that 
expected. 

3 Evidence is moderate, and the responses provided are at the 
minimum level expected.  

4 Evidence and responses are good and well structured, 
demonstrating good knowledge.  

5 Evidence and responses are excellent and beyond that 
expected. 
 

Page 31



  

 
 

The interview process.  

Much of this goes without saying, but at the outset of the interview, 
especially if you are chairing the panel, you will want to cover off the 
following points to make sure the candidate is as settled as possible:  

• Introduce all of the panel members, names and roles 

• Make sure the candidate is aware water is available and they can help 
themselves 

• Explain to them that you will be making notes throughout and that may 
mean they see the top of your head a lot  

• Explain to them there are no trick questions, you just want to get the 
best out of them, if they don’t understand anything, they can just ask for 
clarification. 

• Let them know roughly how long the interview will last.  

 

 

 

 
  

Chief Fire Officer process 

8th August 2021  

 

Page 32



Candidate name: 
 

 

Date: 
 

 

Panel member: 
 

 

Leadership  
 
Q1.   Talk to us about why you have applied for the Chief Fire Officer post in Staffordshire 
and broadly why you feel the time is right to step up into this critical role. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 33



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 34



 
Leadership  
 
Q2. What do you think makes a great leader and how would you demonstrate these skills 
as Chief Fire Officer? 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 35



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 36



Collaboration and Change 
 
Q3.Tell us about a time when you have worked with external bodies and stakeholders to 
deliver successful strategic change. What was your contribution and why was it 
important?  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 37



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 38



Diversity and Inclusion  
 
Q4. What do you see as the key challenges for the Service in relation to diversity, inclusion 
and wellbeing and how as Chief Fire officer will you address these?  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 39



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 40



Service Delivery 
 
Q.5 Given the challenges to be addressed and the changes required in the Service how 
would you ensure that all those in the Service are engaged, understand and contribute to 
future plans? 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 41



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 42



Innovation and Forward Thinking 
 

Q6.Looking forwards, to what degree do you think innovation in the Service is necessary? 
Tell us about a time when you have inspired new and innovative approaches to protecting 
communities from harm? 
  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 43



Please use the scoring criteria below to evaluate the candidate’s responses.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 44



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Scoring Sheet 
Score Definition 
1 Evidence is vague, with serious shortcomings in the quality of 

the response provided.  Overall response falls below the 
required standard. 

2 Evidence is limited. Responses were patchy and below that 
expected. 

3 Evidence is moderate, and the responses provided are at the 
minimum level expected.  

4 Evidence and responses are good and well structured, 
demonstrating good knowledge.  

5 Evidence and responses are excellent and beyond that 
expected. 
 

Page 45



Question 1 Talk to us about why you have applied for the Chief 
Fire Officer post in Staffordshire and broadly why you 
feel the time is right to step up into this critical role. 

 

 

Panel to evaluate the merits of the 
candidate’s response.  

Comments 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 46



 

Question 2 
The following criteria should be considered 
when evaluating the candidate’s response. 
Please note that this list is not exhaustive 

What do you think makes a great leader and how 
would you demonstrate these skills as Chief Fire 
Officer? 

• Promotes and upholds our values and 
professional standards and communicates 
the importance of ethical and inclusive 
approaches. 

• Communicates with passion and integrity to 
maintain and elevate the reputation of the 
service to staff, stakeholders and the public. 

• Uses non-stigmatising behaviours or 
language and non-stereotypical language. 

• Promotes two-way dialogue. 

• Evaluates own performance and take steps to 
continuously improve. 

• Works hard to build and keep trust by 
listening to others’ views and adapting to 
change. 

• Ensures fair and effective systems and 
methods are in place for succession and 
nurturing people’s career. 

• Role model ethical and outstanding 
leadership, encouraging a coaching culture 
and putting in place mechanisms which give 
people access to coaching and mentoring. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 47



Question 3 
The following criteria should be considered 
when evaluating the candidate’s response. 
Please note that this list is not exhaustive 

Tell us about a time when you have worked with 
external bodies and stakeholders to deliver 
successful strategic change. What was your 
contribution and why was it important? 

• Proactively builds and sustains collaborative 
relationships with members, partners and 
high-level stakeholders to shape and 
influence wider public service delivery, 
reducing barriers to effective working. 

• Uses evidence from our own and other’s 
organisations to set strategy and direction for 
the service. 

• Promote the use of formal and informal 
engagement and consultation methods to get 
feedback from staff and customers about 
how we deliver and improve our service. 

• Sets strategies and budgets through 
consultation, which represent the best value 
service now and into the future for 
communities.  

• Ensures that all staff demonstrate 
appropriate levels of business awareness. 

• Takes a long-term view to consider the future 
political, social and economic landscape and 
communicates this to the organisation. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Comments 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 48



Question 4 
The following criteria should be considered 
when evaluating the candidate’s response. 
Please note that this list is not exhaustive 

What do you see as the key challenges for the Service 
in relation to diversity, inclusion and wellbeing and 
how as Chief Fire officer will you address these? 

 

• Promotes and role models inclusion. 

• Works hard to build and keep trust by 
listening to others’ views  

• Promotes two-way dialogue. 

• Values inclusion and sets positive 
examples of appropriate behaviour for 
peers and colleagues. 

• Takes responsibility for inclusion, and 
encourages different points of view. 

• Role models and mentors others in how 
they communicate and engage to 
encourage inclusion. 

• Enters into dialogue not conflict. When 
conflict does occur, handles it in a 
professional manner. 

• Uses a variety of engagement methods 
to seek feedback and understand 
people’s views on emerging issues. 

• Recognises the pressures of leading an 
organisation, role modelling resilience 
and promoting a healthy work-life 
balance. 

• Embeds wellbeing and mental health in 
all strategies, setting up systems to 
monitor and support employee mental 
health and organisational wellbeing. 

• Creates a culture where individual and 
team wellbeing is a priority and ensures 
systems to address this where required 

Comments 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 49



Question 5 
The following criteria should be considered 
when evaluating the candidate’s response. 
Please note that this list is not exhaustive 

Given the challenges to be addressed and the 
changes required in the Service how would you 
ensure that all those in the Service are engaged, 
understand and contribute to future plans? 

 

• Communicates with passion and integrity to 
maintain and elevate the reputation of the 
service to staff, stakeholders and the public. 

• Is aware of the wider impact the organisation 
has on improving community outcomes. 

• Takes a long-term view to consider the future 
political, social and economic landscape and 
communicates this to the organisation. 

• Ensures that our approach to corporate risk is 
well considered and reasonable in the 
circumstances. 

• Makes sure the organisation understands 
how our work contributes to and delivers 
organisational priorities. 

• Fosters a culture of personal responsibility, 
encouraging and supporting others to make 
their own decisions and take ownership of 
their activities. 

• Defines and enforce the standards and 
processes that will help this to happen. 

• Puts in place measures that will allow others 
to take responsibility effectively  

• Take responsibility for crafting key 
organisational messages, monitoring and 
evaluating how they are being received and 
passed down the organisation. 

 

Comments 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 50



Overall Scores 

Question 6 
The following criteria should be considered 
when evaluating the candidate’s response. 
Please note that this list is not exhaustive. 

Looking forwards, to what degree do you think 
innovation in the Service is necessary? Tell us about a 
time when you have inspired new and innovative 
approaches to protecting communities from harm? 

 

• Strives to establish a learning ethos both 
internally and externally. 

• Create conditions for innovation and 
change that support our vision. 

• Fosters and enables continuous 
improvement through using the right 
tools and methods. 

• Improves business processes to promote 
more efficient ways of achieving our 
plans. 

• Implements, test and communicate new 
and far-reaching ways of working that 
can radically change our organisational 
cultures, attitudes and performance. 

• Provides space and encouragement to 
help others stand back from day to-day 
activities, in order to review their 
direction, approach and how they 
achieve organisational goals. 

• Works to create an innovative learning 
culture, recognising and promoting 
innovative activities. 

• Leads, tests and implements new, 
complex and creative initiatives that 
involve multiple stakeholders, create 
significant impact and drive innovation 
outside of their immediate sphere. 

• Demonstrates accountability for 
ensuring that the Staffordshire remains 
up to date and at the forefront of 
national good practice. 

 

  

 

Comments 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 51



 
Please use the following table to record your overall scores: 
 
 

Question 
 

Score Notes 

Q1.   
 

Q2   
 

Q3   
 

Q4   
 

Q5   

Q6   
 

TOTAL:   
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 52



 

P
ag

e1
 

 
 

 
 

Police, Fire and Crime Panel – 12 October 2021 
 

Confirmation Hearing for the appointment of the Chief Constable of 
Staffordshire Police 

 
Report of the Staffordshire Commissioner 

 
1. Report summary  
 
1.1 This report recommends the appointment of Chris Noble to the position of 

Chief Constable for Staffordshire. 
 
1.2 A report prepared by Mohammed Haroon, Independent Member of the 

Interview Panel and Caroline Coombe, Head of People & OD at 

Staffordshire Police, who assisted in the recruitment and appointment 
process is attached for consideration.      

 
2. Recommendations  

 
2.1 It is recommended that: 
 

a) The Police, Fire and Crime Panel consider fully the findings of the 

attached report by Caroline Coombe and her assurances that the 
selection process for this role has met all legal, internal policies and 
executive best practices; 

 

b) The Police, Fire and Crime Panel confirm the appointment of Chris 
Noble to the role of Chief Constable of Staffordshire on a 5 year fixed 
term contract from a start date to be agreed and on a commencing salary 
of £156,693 per annum, with an option to review and extend if required.  

 
c) In confirming the appointment the Police, Fire and Crime Panel 

recognise the significant strengths and personal fit that Chris Noble has 
demonstrated in the selection process.  

 
d) That the Police, Fire and Crime Panel hold me, as the Commissioner, to 

account for ensuring that a robust and effective development plan is in 
place to support the candidate in his new role. 

 
3. Further Detail 
 
3.1 The former Chief Constable, Gareth Morgan retired in June 2021. The 

recruitment for his permanent replacement has rested with Ben Adams, 

the Police, Fire and Crime Commissioner. 
 
3.2 The recruitment process has taken place over the last few months and 

Chris Noble, a current Assistant Chief Constable with Humberside Police, 

is identified as the preferred candidate for the Panel’s consideration. 

Page 53

Agenda Item 5



 

P
ag

e2
 

 
3.3 The attached report has been drafted by Caroline Coombe, Head of 

People & OD at Staffordshire Police and Mohammed Haroon, 
Independent Member of the formal Interview Panel to provide assurance 
as to the robustness of the recruitment and selection process for the Chief 
Constable role.   

      
 

 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
Ben Adams 

Staffordshire Commissioner 
 

 
Contact Officer 
 
Glynn Dixon 

Chief Executive, Staffordshire Commissioner’s Office 
Tel: 01785 232242 
Email: glynn.dixon@staffordshire-pfcc.pnn.gov.uk 
  

Page 54

mailto:glynn.dixon@staffordshire-pfcc.pnn.gov.uk


 

P
ag

e3
 

Report of: Caroline Coombe, Head of People & OD at   
                     Staffordshire Police 

 
Mohammed Haroon, Independent Member of the formal Interview 
Panel  

 

 
To:                 Mr B Adams, Staffordshire Commissioner 
                        

Police, Fire and Crime Panel Members 

 
 
Selection for the Role of Chief Constable of Staffordshire Police 
 

 
1. Introduction and Context  
 
1.1 The role of Staffordshire Chief Constable was vacated by Gareth Morgan 

when he retired in June 2021. At the time, the Deputy Chief Constable, 
Emma Barnett was appointed as Temporary Chief Constable. This report, 
following a lengthy recruitment and selection process, recommends the 
appointment of Chris Noble to the permanent position of Chief Constable 

for Staffordshire Police.   
 
1.2 Working for the Commissioner, the role of the Chief Constable is vital in 

the delivery of the Police and Crime Plan and the forces own Policing Plan 

for Staffordshire. 
 
1.3 The Commissioner put in place measures to ensure that the selection 

process undertaken to appoint a new Chief Constable for Staffordshire 

was properly informed by relevant and specialist advisors, who could 
assure him of the transparency, legality and fairness of the process, and 
most importantly the candidates fit against the identified 
competencies/criteria. In doing so the Commissioner used a number of 

specialist advisors during the process, summarised as follows:  
 
1.4 Specialist Advisors  

 

Helen Slimmon – Senior Psychologist Selection & Assessment, from the 
College of Policing 
 
Helen was responsible for: 

 

• Ensuring provision of independence in the process, (outside of 
Staffordshire People & OD and the Commissioner’s Office), by 
facilitating the staff and stakeholder panel process, including 

personalised feedback to the interviewing panel.   

• Administering the personality assessments and subsequent 
conversations with all candidates. 

• Providing technical assurance to the panel on the fit of the candidates 

against all professional standards.  
 

Page 55



 

P
ag

e4
 

Glynn Dixon – Chief Executive, Commissioner’s Office 
 

Glynn was responsible for: 
 

• Ensuring that the Commissioner’s requirements were met in terms 
of the recruitment process, business and service outcomes; 

• Ensuring all aspects of the recruitment process were coordinated 
and worked smoothly; 

• Ensuring staff, stakeholders and an independent representative 
were involved in the process.  

 
Caroline Coombe – Head of People & OD Services, Staffordshire 
Police.  

 

Caroline was responsible for: 
 

• Preparing the recruitment timeline and agreeing this with the 
Commissioner; 

• Preparing the application and information pack and agreeing this 
with the Commissioner and ensuring this was available to all 
candidates via the chosen recruitment platforms;  

• Advising the Commissioner on the relevant advertising / sourcing 

methods to secure applications for the role in line with the College of 
Policing Guidance and Toolkit for the selection of Chief Officers; 

• Ensuring that the shortlisting of candidates was conducted and 
candidates where measured against the criteria laid down in the role 

profile; the Competency and Values Framework for policing and the 
leadership domains; 

• Providing assurance to the Commissioner as to the transparency, 
fairness and compliance of process, both in terms of compliance with 

legal and internal policies alongside best practice executive 
recruitment techniques.  

• Providing professional HR advice to the interview panel during the 
process 

• Working with the Independent Interview Panel member to create this 
report for submission to the Police, Fire & Crime panel on the 12th 
October 2021 for their information to enable the panel to fulfil its 
duties which are to:  

 

• Review the proposed appointment 

• Determine whether it agrees, vetoes or makes certain 
recommendations regarding the proposed appointment 

• Notify the Commissioner of its decision and any 
recommendations 

• Publish its report and recommendations 
 

  

Page 56



 

P
ag

e5
 

2.    Background 
   

a. Role Profile  
 

• The role profile (Appendix 1) was reviewed by Ben Adams and 
Glynn Dixon.  The role profile outlines the key requirements of the 

role to form the method on which to test competence.  The role 
profile was agreed as suitable for use. 

 

• In addition to the role profile a candidate pack (Appendix 2) was 

provided which contains comprehensive information about the role 
and Force : 

 
o A foreword that outlined the role of Chief Constable with the aim 

of  exciting candidates to join Staffordshire Police detailing what 
was expected from the role and allowing candidates to pre-select 
themselves against the role challenges and context 

o Several documents setting out the priorities of the Commissioner 

and the Service 
o The conditions of service of the role   
o Application form 
o Competency and Values framework for policing 

o Leadership domains  
 
3. Sourcing Candidates 
 

3.1 In line with the College of Policing guidance, the role was advertised for 
three weeks with a closing date of 3rd September 2021. The advertisement 
(Appendix 3) was placed in the media outlined below. 

 

▪ The National Police Chiefs’ Council website 
▪ Staffordshire Force Website 
▪ COMMISSIONER Staffordshire Website 
▪ College of Policing Website 

▪ In addition to this, the Commissioner wrote to every eligible Chief 
Officer across the UK advising them of the impending vacancy. 

 
3.2 The result of the above advertising exercise was that four applications 

were received before the advertised closing date, three applications were 
received from external candidates and one application from an internal 
candidate.  

 

4. Creating a short list  
 
4.1 The four applications were duly assessed by the shortlisting panel, which 

was made up of the Commissioner, his Chief Executive, the Head of 

People Services and OD Enabling Services, a senior College of Policing 
Representative and an Independent Panel member, on the following:  

 

• Did the candidates meet the prior experience and qualifications of 

the role? 

Page 57



 

P
ag

e6
 

• Did the candidates demonstrate in their application a sufficient 
match with the technical requirements of the role? 

• Did the candidates demonstrate in their application sufficient match 
with the personal qualities required for the role? 

 
4.2 The shortlisting panel took place on 7th September and recommended that 

all four applicants be progressed to the next stage of the process. An 
example of the shortlisting form is attached (Appendix 4) 

 
5. Selection Process 

 
5.1 The Commissioner together with his Chief Executive and the Head of 

Resourcing and Recruitment agreed the formal process for selection. 
 

5.2 A four stage selection process was recommended:  
 

• An internal Staff Panel session 

• An external Stakeholder Panel session 

• Personality Profiling 

• An interview panel (including presentation topic) 
 
5.3 The interview panel was provided with a comprehensive pack of 

information to assist them during the interviews, as follows: 
 

• Role Profile  

• Candidates application forms 

• Applicants pack 

• Competency and Values Framework for Policing 

• Interview Questions (Appendix 5) 
 

5.4 The candidates were invited by way of email dated 8th September 2021 
(Appendix 6) which sets out the stages for the selection process. 

 
6. Internal Staff Panel  

 
6.1 The Commissioner sent an email to all officers and staff inviting them to 

become involved in the recruitment of the new Chief Constable by taking 
part in a Question and Answer session with the four candidates.  This took 

place on 20th September 2021 and was attended by eight employees of 
the service. This session was facilitated by Helen Slimmon from the 
College of Policing, who briefed the panel in advance of the exercise 
(Appendix 7) 

 
6.2 The candidates were provided with a briefing for the session in their invite 

to interview email and had been given a topic to introduce and discuss for 
10 minutes.  The following 30 minutes was given over to questions from 

the Staff Panel.   
 
7. External Stakeholder Panel 
 

Page 58



 

P
ag

e7
 

7.1 The Commissioner invited representatives of external stakeholders to 
form a panel where the candidates would introduce and discuss a topic 

(Appendix 8) followed by a Question and Answer session.  This session 
was facilitated by Chetan Kalsi from the College of Policing and took place 
on the 7th September 2021. This was attended by senior stakeholders 
from Stoke on Trent City Council, Staffordshire County Council, 

Staffordshire Fire and Rescue and Staffordshire University. 
 
8.  Personality Testing 
 

Administered by Helen Slimmon the candidates completed a personality 
profiling questionnaire followed by a one to one interview to validate and 
explore the results. 

 

9.     Selection Panel   
 
 9.1 The final selection panel consisted of:  
 

• Ben Adams – Commissioner 

• Glynn Dixon – Chief Executive 

• Caroline Coombe – Head of People Services and OD Staffordshire 
Police 

• Joanne Noakes – College of Policing  

• Mohammed Haroon – Independent Panel Member 
 

9.2 Feedback from the Staff and Stakeholder Panels and Personality 

assessment was collated by Helen Slimmon from the College of Policing 
and a briefing was given to the interview panel covering each candidate 
prior to interviews taking place. 
 

9.3 In line with guidance published by the College of Policing and HO Circular 
013/2018, the selection panel was established to reflect a range of skills  
and backgrounds. In particular, Jo Noakes, the Director of Workforce 
Development at the College of Policing brought significant national 

experience of senior appointments and a strong knowledge base of 
policing and Mohammed Haroon, an independent panel member, brought 
a wealth of experience as a former senior civil servant with national and 
international leadership experience representing the UK, as well as  

experience and skills from work in the private sector and through 
community leadership in Staffordshire. 

 
9.4 The independent member is required to produce a written report (this 

report) addressing the appointment principles of merit, fairness and 
openness and the panel meeting its purpose.           

 
10. Selection Panel Process 

 
10.1 Candidates were provided with a topic (Appendix 6) in advance of the 

interview date to prepare a presentation. Candidates were given ten 
minutes to deliver their presentation followed by twenty minutes of 

questions from the panel. (Appendix 9). 

Page 59



 

P
ag

e8
 

 
10.2 The interviews were conducted on the basis of the pre-prepared questions 

and the additional ‘probing’ questions asked at the interview were to 
establish a deeper or further demonstration of the competencies. All 
questions were pertinent and relevant to the competencies outlined in the 
role profile (Appendix 1). 

 
11. Conclusion 

 
11.1 The wash up session of the panel concluded that overall, Chris Noble most 

closely met the requirements for the role of Chief Constable of 
Staffordshire.  The final interview panel was assured, before reaching their 
final decision of:  

 

• Technical fit by way of a suitably qualified person, personal 
qualities, behaviours, competencies and overall fit for 
Staffordshire Police 

• Business acumen and service delivery 

• Competency fit by way of suitably qualified person 
 

11.2 The outcome of the final interview panel was to recommend that the 
Commissioner appoint Chris Noble to the post subject to medical and 

vetting clearance and suitable references.  Further confirmation by the 
Police, Fire and Crime Panel will be required. 

 
12    Recommendations  

 
12.1 Having taken all specialist advice and considered the opinions and views 

of all Panels, it is the Commissioner’s recommendation that the candidate 
be appointed subject to confirmation by the Police, Fire and Crime Panel. 

 
12.2 That Chris Noble be appointed on a 5 year fixed term basis on a         

commencing salary of £156,693 per annum. 
 

 
Appendices (titles) 
 

1. Role Profile 

2. Candidate pack 
3. Advertisement  
4. Shortlisting form 
5. Invite to interview email 

6. Brief regarding the internal staff panel 
7. Brief regarding the external stakeholder panel 
8. Presentation topic 
9. Interview questions 

 
 
 

Page 60



   
 
 

1 | Staffordshire Police Role Profile:  Chief Constable last updated: 2021 
 

Staffordshire Police - Role Profile 
Chief Constable 

Grade/Rank: Chief Constable  

Reports to: Staffordshire Commissioner   

Direct Reports: Deputy Chief Constable  
 

Role Purpose 
The Chief Constable has overall responsibility for leading the Force, creating a vision and setting 
direction and culture that builds public and organisational confidence and trust, and enables the 
delivery of a professional, effective and efficient policing service. 
 
The Chief Constable holds direct accountability for the operational delivery of policing services and 
the effective command and leadership of the policing response to crime, and major and critical 
incidents. 
 
The Chief Constable is responsible for influencing the development of regional and national policing 
and may be accountable for national operations or standard setting. 
 
As a Corporation Sole, the Chief Constable is responsible for fulfilling all statutory and legal 
obligations of the office of Chief Constable and complying with any Schemes of Governance or 
Consent that exist, which determine force governance arrangements. 
 

 

Key Accountabilities: 
• Set and ensure the implementation of organisational and operational strategy for the Force, having 
due regard to the Police and Crime Plan and Strategic Policing Requirement and any wider plans and 
objectives, in order to provide an effective and efficient policing service that meets current and future 
policing demands. 

• Develop a mutually productive strategic relationship with the Police and Crime Commissioner in 
line with the requirements of the Policing Protocol, whilst fulfilling all statutory and legal obligations 
as Corporation Sole. 

• Develop and maintain governance arrangements and processes within the force, to ensure effective 
decision making and appropriate action at all levels/tiers of the organisation. 

• Lead the Force, communicating a clear direction, setting organisational culture and promoting 
values, ethics and high standards of professional conduct to enable an effective and professional 
service. 

• Lead, inspire and engage the Chief Officer Team; setting and role modelling approaches to a 
workforce culture that promotes wellbeing, facilitates impactful professional development and 
performance management to create empowered teams that effectively enable the achievement of 
the Force vision and goals. 

• Hold accountability for Force financial management and determine functional budgets within the 
agreed framework as issued by the Police and Crime Commissioner, to ensure the effective use of 
public spending and maximise value for money. 

Page 61



   
 
 

2 | Staffordshire Police Role Profile:  Chief Constable last updated: 2021 
 

• Fulfil the authorising responsibilities of a Chief Constable e.g. authorisation of intrusive surveillance 
and maintain operational oversight, holding accountability for effective, compliant policing responses, 
in order to protect the public and further develop the Force’s operational strategies. 

• Lead and command the operational policing responses on occasion, in the most high risk and high 
profile instances, in order to protect the public and ensure an appropriate and effective response. 

• Advise national bodies such as COBR on matters of public safety and national security to contribute 
to effective decision making that protects the public from serious threat and upholds the law. 

• Develop and maintain strategic relationships with local, regional and national partners, effectively 
influencing and collaborating to contribute to improvements and change in the broader operating 
context and enable the achievement of the Force objectives. 

• Represent the Force at a local, regional and national level to the public, media and other external 
stakeholders to promote visibility, connect with the public and build confidence in policing. 

• Lead national thinking, policy and guidance within an area of specialism to enable the continuous 
improvement of effective policing practice. 

• Create and drive a culture of development, change and innovation to ensure enhanced productivity, 
value for money and continuous improvement in evidence based policing. 

• Play an active role in national decision making on the development of the Police Service to enable 
the effective co-ordination of operations, reform and improvements in policing and the provision of 
value for money. 

 
 

Behaviours   
All roles are expected to know, understand and act within the ethics and values of the Police Service. The 
Competency and Values Framework (CVF) has six competencies that are clustered into three groups. Under 
each competency are three levels that show what behaviours will look like in practice. This role should be 
operating or working towards the following levels of the CVF: 
 
Resolute, compassionate and committed 
 
We are emotionally aware 3 

We take ownership 3 

Inclusive, enabling and visionary leadership 
 
We are collaborative 3 

We deliver, support and 
inspire 

3 

Intelligent, creative and informed policing 
 
We analyse critically 3 

We are innovative and 
open-minded 

3 

 

Page 62



   
 
 

3 | Staffordshire Police Role Profile:  Chief Constable last updated: 2021 
 

 

Education, Qualifications Skills and Experience 
Essential: Desirable: 
Prior Education and Experience: 

• Has held rank of ACC/Commander or a more 
senior rank in a UK Police Force (or have held 
one of the designated roles if appointed from 
overseas)  

• Successful completion of the Senior Police 
National Assessment Centre (PNAC) and the 
Strategic Command Course (SCC)  

• Authorising Officer Training. 

• Wide ranging operational law enforcement 
experience. 

• A demonstrable track record of successful 
experience of working at a strategic level, 
including the leadership of law enforcement 
officers and staff at senior leadership level. 

• Experience of successfully engaging with and 
influencing multi-agency partnerships. 

• Experience of implementing an effective 
performance management framework. 

• Experience of implementing successful 
organisational development, change and 
innovation. 

• Experience of accountability for management 
of significant budgets. 

• Up to date operational/technical policing 
knowledge. 

• Knowledge of developing legal, political, 
economic, social, technological, and 
environmental factors and an understanding of 
the implications for strategic planning. 

• Knowledge of relevant local, regional and 
national policies, strategies and initiatives and 
an understanding of the implications within the 
policing context. 

 

 

 

 

Page 63



   
 
 

4 | Staffordshire Police Role Profile:  Chief Constable last updated: 2021 
 

 

Technical/Operational Skills  
Essential: Desirable 
• Highly skilled in the development of ambitious 

vision, strategy and policy, aligned to 
operational realities and wider plans/goals. 

• Able to operate with high levels of commercial 
acumen, skilled in effective organisational 
financial management which balances conflicting 
resource demands and drives value for money. 

• Able to create strategic organisational change, 
to deliver appropriate responses to emerging 
trends and issues. 

• Able to scan the internal and external horizon, 
identifying emerging trends and issues and use 
these to inform strategic planning. 

• Able to operate with high levels of political 
astuteness, skilled in impacting the internal and 
external political landscape effectively. 

• Able to use a wide range of highly effective 
communication, problem solving and influencing 
techniques and methods to successfully 
negotiate, collaborate and influence change at 
the most senior levels and across a diverse range 
of stakeholders and partners. 

• Skilled in building and maintaining strategic 
stakeholder relationships at the most senior 
levels, being able to resolve issues and to 
reconcile conflicts of interest. 

• Skilled in leading, developing and inspiring 
people, engaging the organisation with strategic 
priorities, values and behaviours. 

• Able to reflect on and hold themselves, 
individuals and the organisation to account for 
performance and behaviours. 

• Able to identify, commission and implement 
new or improved technologies/services that have 
a transformational impact on Force service 
delivery and/or cost. 

 

 

 

Leadership Passport Level Practitioners & 
Team Leaders 

1st Line 
Mngrs 

2nd Line 
Mngrs 

Senior 
Mngrs 

1 2 3 4 

Page 64



   
 
 

5 | Staffordshire Police Role Profile:  Chief Constable last updated: 2021 
 

* Indicates that training will be provided as part of the role in this skill 

CPD Requirements  
Personal Skills  
• Role model continuing professional development and lead by example by sharing learning and 
reflections to support the professionalisation of the police service. 
• Maintain knowledge of strategic leadership and management theory and continually reflect on 
practical application in the operational policing context. 
• Attend bi-annual National Chief Constable CPD events. 
• Participate in coaching and/or mentoring opportunities for self and others to use and share the 
learning to inform own and others’ approach to leadership, management and policing. 
 
Business Skills 
• Maintain commercial awareness and build financial acumen by working closely with partners and 
multi-agencies at a local and national level. 
• Maintain knowledge and understanding of performance management processes, including data 
analysis methodologies and how performance can be benchmarked locally, regionally and 
nationally. 
• Contribute to evidence based research by conducting research and analysis of operational 
policing issues to solve problems and support the professionalisation and transformation of 
policing. 
• Build and participate in peer networks and action learning sets to enable approaches to joint 
problem solving, share learning locally, regionally and nationally to support business process 
modernisation, efficiency and continuity. 
 
Professional Skills  
• Maintain knowledge of College of Policing Guidance, best practice and national and local 
initiatives and policies applicable to the strategic policing context. 
• Maintain and update key knowledge and understanding to effectively apply legislation, policy and 
practice across all functional policing areas of operational responsibility. 
• Maintain knowledge and understanding of political, economic, social, technological, legal and 
environmental factors and developments to inform strategic policing plans and enable an efficient 
and effective approach to policing and ensure the force is able to tackle new and evolving crime, 
threats and priorities. 
• Work with national policing agencies and bodies, such as Her Majesty’s Inspectorate of 
Constabulary and Fire and Rescue Services (HMICFRS), National Crime Agency (NCA) and the 
College of Policing, and participate in and contribute to serious case reviews and Independent 
Office for Police Conduct (IOPC) investigations to ensure the force meets and maintains 
professional standards. 
• Complete all annual and mandatory training to retain occupational and operational accreditation. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 65



   
 
 

6 | Staffordshire Police Role Profile:  Chief Constable last updated: 2021 
 

Special Conditions 
Own car for business use N 
Higher level vetting required Y 
Requirement to wear Uniform Y 
Requirement for post entry training N 
Fixed Hours N 
Weekend working expected Y 
Shift allowance  N 
Fixed term or temporary role Y 
Politically Restricted N 
On call/standby rota Y 
Flexitime Role N 
Notice Period 1 week 28 Days 1 month 3 months  

 

As part of the limited duties profiling, this role has been identified that the role holder must be able to 
fulfil the following core capabilities.  To meet the Equality Act (2010) reasonable adjustments will be 
made wherever practicable. 

Limited Duties  
Sit for reasonable 
periods(consider impact 
of driving) a1 

Y Evaluate information (d1) Y 

To write(a2) Y Record details (d2) Y 
Read(a3) Y Exercise reasonable physical force in 

restraint & retention in custody (e1) 
Y 

Use the telephone(a4)  Y Understand information (f1) Y 
Use(or learn to use 
IT)(a5) 

Y Retain information(f2) Y 

Run reasonable 
distances (b1) 

Y Explain facts & procedures (f3) Y 

Walk reasonable 
distances (b2) 

Y Work the full range of shifts Y 

Stand for reasonable 
time (b3) 

Y Shift - Earlies (g1) Y 

Make decisions (c1) Y Shift - Lates (g2) Y 
Report situations to 
others (c2) 

Y Shift - Nights(g3) Y 

 

 

Page 66



 
 

 

  
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 Chief Constable Recruitment 

Candidate Information Pack 
July 2021 
 

Page 67



 
 

 

INTRODUCTION 
 
Dear Applicant,  
 
As the new Police, Fire and Crime Commissioner for Staffordshire I am recruiting a Chief 
Constable following the recent retirement of Gareth Morgan. The previous Chief Constable 
leaves the organisation in a good place however I am now looking to recruit a new leader for 
Staffordshire Police, continuing to develop an effective model of policing that meets the 
needs of local communities and capable of improving joint working and cooperation, 
regionally and nationally. 
 
I am looking to appoint an individual who can clearly show that they have the capability to do 
the job and deliver an inclusive and collaborative style of leadership, making strong 
connections internally throughout the organisation and externally working hard to create 
partnerships that add value to the achievement of policing and community safety outcomes. 
 
Policing is constantly evolving and what is understood as traditional policing has already and 
continues to change. Our communities require their police service to be able to respond to 
those wider cultural, environmental and societal changes as well as those local and impactful 
issues. As technology continues to speed up social evolution, it is vital that our police service 
works with greater agility, and ideally plays a greater role in shaping the operating 
environment to prevent crime and harm rather than simply responding to it. In addition, the 
constraints of budgets in a time when public spending will continue to be challenging, will 
require a leader that can look forwards and implement within this environment.    
 
There is further detail and links in this pack which set out the Staffordshire Policing Plan 
Priorities, requirements of the role and the selection process including dates. 
 
Thank you for your interest in the role and if you have any questions or require any further 
information please do not hesitate to get in touch.  
 
Yours sincerely,  
 
 
 
 
Ben Adams 
Police, Fire and Crime Commissioner for Staffordshire 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

Page 68



 
 

 

Chief Constable role  
 
The Chief Constable has overall responsibility for leading Staffordshire Police. They will be 
responsible for creating the force’s vision, and setting a direction and culture that builds 
public and organisational confidence and trust. They will be responsible for enabling the 
delivery of a professional, effective and efficient policing service for today and the future.  
 
The Chief Constable will be expected to embed genuine empowerment and accountability at 
all levels of the workforce. They will ensure that every member of the organisation is enabled 
to deliver the Commissioner’s Police and Crime Plan, understanding and responding to public 
needs and ensuring strong connections between the police and the communities they serve, 
reducing crime and enabling victims to cope and recover.  
 
The Chief Constable is directly accountable for the operational delivery of policing services 
and the effective command and leadership of the policing response to crime, and major and 
critical incidents. They are responsible for influencing the development of regional and 
national policing and may be accountable for national operations or standard setting.  
 
The Chief Constable will need to lead the organisation across all aspects, both operationally 
and ensuring best value for public money through responsible budget and workforce 
management and development. They will use evidence based decision making, to deliver 
measureable benefits.  
 
As a Corporation Sole, the Chief Constable is responsible for fulfilling all statutory and legal 
obligations of the Office of Chief Constable and complying with any Schemes of Governance 
or Consent that exist, which determine force governance arrangements. Please refer to 
the Role Profile for further details regarding role purpose and key accountabilities.  
 
The successful candidate will also be expected to deliver against the core components of 
the Staffordshire Policing Plan Priorities with its connection to the new Commissioner’s 
developing Police and Crime Plan (more details to be available over the next few weeks). 
 

Page 69

https://careers.staffordshire.police.uk/chief-constable-role/chief-constable-role-profile/
https://staffordshire-pfcc.gov.uk/about/police-crime/


 
 

 

Application and Selection process  
 

Applications 

The closing date for the application is Friday 3rd September 2021 at noon. Completed 
application forms should be marked private and confidential and emailed to Glynn Dixon, 
Chief Executive; Glynn.Dixon@staffordshire-pfcc.pnn.gov.uk     

Candidates who would like an informal discussion with either Ben Adams, Police, Fire and 
Crime Commissioner or Glynn Dixon, Chief Executive should contact Lyndsey Pajor on Tel: 
01785 232270 or via email; Lyndsey.Pajor@staffordshire-pfcc.pnn.gov.uk  
 
In addition, visits to the force can be facilitated to enable candidates to familiarise themselves 
with Staffordshire Police and engage with colleagues across the force; please contact Lyndsey 
Pajor should you wish to engage with such arrangements. 
 
Selection Process 
 
All information submitted by applicants will be considered by the Police, Fire and Crime 
Commissioner and his shortlisting panel. Evidence will be drawn from the Application Form 
including how you meet the criteria set out in the Competencies and Values Framework 
and the skills as detailed in the Role Profile. 
 
Values are considered and assessed at every stage of the selection process as detailed in the 
Competencies and Values Framework and the Code of Ethics which outline the expected 
standards of behaviour. 
 
Please be aware of the key dates set out below, and ensure that, should you be shortlisted, 
you are available for the dates indicated. Please note that with the current Covid-19 situation 
there may be need to change the process at short notice if the Health Protection guidance 
changes. We will endeavour to give as much notice as possible if this were to be the case.  
 
 
Shortlisted applicants will be informed no later than 10th September 2021; if successful you 
will be invited to undertake an online Personality Assessment which will take place week 
commencing 13th September 2021.  
 
Candidates will then be invited to Staffordshire Police HQ to participate in Stakeholder / Staff 
Panels on the 20th September 2021 followed by a Presentation and Interview Panel on the 
21st September 2021.  
 
Interview Expenses 

The PF&C will pay reasonable and necessary expenses of candidates invited for interview.  

 
 
 

Page 70

mailto:Glynn.Dixon@staffordshire-pfcc.pnn.gov.uk
https://d17wy4t6ps30xx.cloudfront.net/production/uploads/2017/09/Competency-and-Values-Framework-for-Policing_4.11.16.pdf
https://careers.staffordshire.police.uk/chief-constable-role/chief-constable-role-profile/
https://www.college.police.uk/ethics/code-of-ethics


 
 

 

TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 
For full conditions of service, please click here. 
 
  
Post :  Chief Constable  

 
Accountable to :  The Police, Fire and Crime Commissioner for 

Staffordshire  
 

Location* :  Staffordshire Police HQ 
Weston Road  
Staffordshire  
ST18 0YY  
 

Responsible for:  The direction and control of Staffordshire 
Police in accordance with the Police Act 1996, 
in order to provide Staffordshire with an 
effective and efficient police service, and the 
fulfilment of all the statutory and legal 
obligations of the office of Chief Constable.  

 
* The Chief Constable will be required to reside within the force area or close proximity to 
undertake the full role of the Chief Constable in Staffordshire. Details relating to temporary 
accommodation, relocation and housing allowance can be found within the attached T & C 
document.  

Police, Fire and Crime Panel – Confirmation Hearing 

Pursuant to Schedule 8 of the Police Reform and Social Responsibility Act 2011, the 
appointment of a Chief Constable is subject to a Confirmation Hearing of the Police and Crime 
Panel, at which the nominated candidate is expected to be present. It should be noted that 
the Panel does have the right to veto the proposed appointment. The confirmation Hearing 
must be called within 3 weeks of the notification to the Panel of the nominated candidate. 

If you have any further questions regarding the selection process of the role, please contact 
Glynn Dixon, Chief Executive, Staffordshire Police, Fire & Crime Commissioner’s Office, PO 
Box 3167, Stafford ST16 9JZ 

 

Contact details: Tel 01785 232270 or email: glynn.dixon@staffordshire-pfcc.pnn.gov.uk 

Page 71

https://careers.staffordshire.police.uk/chief-constable-role/chief-constable-process-tcs/
mailto:Lyndsey.pajor@staffordshire-pfcc.pnn.gov.uk


 

                   

 

Chief Constable of Staffordshire Police  
 
5 Years Fixed Term Contract – c. 156k per annum  
Location: Staffordshire Police HQ, Weston Road, Stafford 
 
Staffordshire’s Police, Fire and Crime Commissioner is recruiting a Chief Constable who can lead 
Staffordshire Police over the next few years, developing the Force in the face of the significant 
challenges that face policing and ensuring the delivery of a first-class service to local communities. 
  
This is an incredibly important role at a time when Staffordshire Police wants to build a strong vision 
for the future, connect better with communities and show itself to be adaptable and nimble in 
achieving both its aspirations and the aspirations of the Commissioner. The successful candidate will 
therefore, be an excellent strategic leader with an inclusive and collaborative leadership style who can 
make those strong connections internally and externally, adding significant value to the achievement 
of policing and community safety outcomes. 
 
If you can bring that approach alongside a collective focus and leadership style that embeds the right 
culture to help achieve sustainable and modern ways of delivering policing services, then we would 
welcome your interest.  
 
 
 
Ben Adams  
Police Fire and Crime Commissioner for Staffordshire  
 
For an application and information pack, please click here.  
 
Closing date for applications: 3rd September 2021 

 Page 72

https://careers.staffordshire.police.uk/chief-constable-role/


                                                                                                                                 
 

Appointment of Chief Constable         
Shortlisting Form 

                                                                               
Candidate:                      Ref Number:                                               Assessor:  

 
 

TO WHAT EXTENT HAS THE CANDIDATE 
DEMONSTRATED 

 

 
Not at all 

(0) 

 
Limited 

(1) 

 
Reasonable 

(2) 

 
Significant 

(3) 

Impartiality 
Demonstrates impartiality through dealings with 
colleagues, partners and members of the public 

    

Integrity 
Understands and reinforces expectations of professional 
behaviour making sure that we always uphold the values 
and ethical standards of the police service. Builds and 
maintains confidence with the public, colleagues and 
partners 
 

    

Public Service 
Dedicated to work in the public interest, engaging and 
listening to their needs and concerns. Ensuring that the 
public feel valued and engaged, building confidence in 
the police service.  

    

P
age 73



Transparency 
Demonstrates transparency in actions, decisions and 
communications with both the people we work with and 
those we serve. Builds trust in our colleagues, partners 
and communities. 

    

We are Emotionally aware 
Demonstrates culturally sensitivity and seeks to 
understand different perspectives, acting with sensitivity, 
compassion and warmth.  

    

We Take Ownership 
Takes personal responsibility for their role and 
accountabilities. Makes decisions at appropriate levels 
and in appropriate areas, having a clear rationale for 
their approach.  

    

We are Collaborative 
Builds genuine and long-lasting partnerships that focus 
on collective aims and not just on our own organisation.  
Builds good relationships with other public 
and third sector providers, reaching out to private 
organisations and working with our communities and 
customers. 

    

We Deliver Support and Inspire 
Dedicated to working in the public’s best interests. 
Understands how we have an impact on the wider 
organisation and those around us helping others 
to deliver their objectives effectively. 

    

We Analyse Critically 
Draws on experience, knowledge and wide sources of 
evidence, data and information to give a greater view of 
what is happening. Uses an evidence-based approach 
and robust information to be able to think tactically and 
strategically. 

    

P
age 74



We are Innovative and Open Minded 
Has an inquisitive and outward-looking nature, 
searching for new information to understand alternative 
sources of good practice and implement creative 
working methods 

    

The Office of the Police and Crime Commissioner 
participates in the Interview guarantee scheme.  Is 
the applicant disabled? 
 
If the answer is yes please ensure that you make the 
Recruitment Team aware. 
 

 
Yes             

No                      

 Has the applicant declared any convictions or out-
standing financial issues? 
 
If the answer is yes please ensure that you make the 
Recruitment Team aware 

 

 

Yes             

No                         
 

 

P
age 75



 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 

 
 

Chief Constable Interview  
Interview Guide September 2021 

 
Candidate  
Interviewer  
  
Date  

 
  

 1 Page 76



 

 

Before the interview commences: 

 Read the role profile for the position and familiarise yourself with the interview 

questions and the scoring matrix. 

 Decide how you will divide up the questions amongst the assessors. 

 Introduce yourself and your colleague using the following script: 

 

“Hello, my name is ….and these are my colleagues……. We will be taking you 

through your interview today, which will run for a maximum of 60 minutes.  

The aim of the interview is for you to talk us through your knowledge and 

experience relevant to the role of  Chief Constable 

 

If you don’t understand a question, then please tell us and we will re-phrase it. 

As interviewers, we will be responsible for managing time and will ensure that 

you move through the questions appropriately.    

We will listen carefully to what you are saying throughout the interview but 

because of tight timescales and the need to ensure you have as much 

opportunity to give a good account of yourself, we may sometimes interrupt 

and move you on.  

We will be taking notes throughout the interview so that we can gather as much 

information as possible, and that because of the note taking we may at times 

struggle to maintain eye contact. 

 

Are you ready to commence the interview?” 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 2 Page 77



 
 
During the interview: 
 

 Probe questions should be asked to provide the candidate with an opportunity 

to expand on their response and to give you the opportunity to gather as 

much detail as possible to inform decision making. The prompts listed are 

example prompts, please feel free to use your own prompts if you think them 

more relevant to what the candidate has described.  

 There is a lot to cover in a short period of time, so it is important that you don’t 

let the candidate dwell too long on a single question and that you move them 

on if needed. 

After the interview: 
 Thank the candidate for their time and ask them if they have any questions 

 
When the candidate has left the room 

 Please review all evidence gained and score each competency on the 1-5 

scale shown below. 

 Each assessor should score independently but come together to agree 
on the final rating  

 Please ensure that the overall score appropriately reflects the candidate’s 

responses. The panel should debate and agree final scores for each area of 

questioning, avoid using a numerical average when determining this overall 

score.  

 3 Page 78



Interview Questions 
 
Question 1 
 
Tell us about why you have applied for the Chief Constable role in Staffordshire 
and broadly why you feel the time is right to step up into this critical role. 

 
Prompts (to be used as required, please feel free to use your own prompts if they 
are more relevant to what the candidate has described) 
 

• What do you feel would be our biggest advantage in appointing you to the role? 
• What do you see as the key difference you can make in leading Staffordshire police? 
• What do you see as your key attributes for the role of Chief Constable?  
• How will you make a difference for the people of Staffordshire?   
• How would you describe your leadership approach? 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 4 Page 79



We are Emotionally Aware 

Question 2 
 
What do you see as the key priorities for the force in relation to diversity, inclusion 
and wellbeing, and how as Chief Constable will you will you build trust and 
confidence in policing across the region? 

 
Prompts (to be used as required, please feel free to use your own prompts if they 
are more relevant to what the candidate has described) 
 

• What do you see as the key barriers in improving diversity and inclusion? 
• How will you ensure a supportive organisational culture that recognises and values 

diversity?  
• How would you challenge those that don’t agree or do not follow your approach? 
• How will you build diversity into decision making as Chief Constable? 
• How will your approach impact on our wider policing objectives? 
• What have you done in your current or previous role to increase diversity and 

inclusivity? 
 

 

  

 5 Page 80



We Take Ownership 
 
Question 3 
 
How would you describe the challenges across Staffordshire when it comes to 
balancing the priorities of both our urban and rural communities, and how as Chief 
Constable will you deliver on these? 

 
Prompts (to be used as required, please feel free to use your own prompts if they 
are more relevant to what the candidate has described) 
 

• How will you use past learning to improve future approaches? 
• How will you foster a culture of personal responsibility and encourage others to take 

ownership of their activities and decisions? 
• How will you measure performance to ensure our community needs are met?  
• How will you ensure that we have the skills and resources available to deliver on our 

priorities?  

 

  

 6 Page 81



We are Collaborative 
Question 4 
 
What do you see as the key areas of collaboration across Staffordshire and how 
will you work with key stakeholders and the office of the Police, Fire and Crime 
Commissioner do deliver on our priorities? 

 
Prompts (to be used as required, please feel free to use your own prompts if they 
are more relevant to what the candidate has described) 
 

• What do see as the key strategic partnerships to delivering our force ambition?  
• How will you identify and breakdown barriers to effective partnership working? 
• How will you enhance our operating model to increase levels of trust and co-

operation between people and departments? 
• What mutual benefits have you achieved when working in partnership with others?  

 
  

 7 Page 82



We Deliver Support and Inspire 
Question 5 
 
As Chief Constable, how will you communicate your vision and priorities both 
internally and externally and how will you ensure that the force is brought into and 
can deliver on your philosophy? 

Prompts (to be used as required, please feel free to use your own prompts if they 
are more relevant to what the candidate has described) 

 
• How will you ensure the force is focussed on delivery of our objectives? 
• How will you communicate you vision? 
• How will you balance your decisions based on competing internal and external 

factors? 
• What barriers do you anticipate and how will you overcome these? 

 
 
  

 8 Page 83



We are Innovative and Open Minded 
 
Question 6 
 
What do you feel are the national challenges facing policing in the longer term and 
how do you feel Staffordshire Police will need to adapt to meet those challenges? 

Prompts (to be used as required, please feel free to use your own prompts if they 
are more relevant to what the candidate has described) 
 

• How will you balance the costs and benefits associated with change and innovation? 
• How will you ensure that the force thinks differently in its approach to new 

challenges? 
• How will you use your knowledge of the wider external environment and long-term 

situations to inform effective decision making?  
• How have you introduced significant change in the past and how did you win support 

for this?  
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 9 Page 84



 
Close – 1 minute 

• Confirm that this is the end of the interview & ask the candidate if they have 
any questions 

• Thank the candidate for their time & let them know about the next stages of 
the process.  

 
 
 
  

 10 Page 85



Candidate Rating 
Assessors should review each competency and then provide an overall score for 
each competency based on the grid below: 
 

Scoring Sheet 
Score Definition 
1 Information is vague, with serious shortcomings in the quality of 

the response provided.  Overall response falls below the required 
standard. 

2 Information is limited. Responses were patchy and below that 
expected. 

3 Information is moderate, and the responses provided are at the 
minimum level expected.  

4 Information and responses are good and well structured, 
demonstrating good knowledge.  

5 Information and responses are excellent and beyond that 
expected. 
 

 
 
Each assessor should score independently but then come to AGREEMENT on 
ONE SET of RATINGS to be submitted. 
 
Assessors must agree on the score based upon the evidence gained during the 
interview. 
 
Summary Scores 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Competency Overall Rating 
Question 1 The Role  
Question 2 We are Emotionally Aware  
Question 3 We Take Ownership  
Question 4 We are Collaborative  
Question 5 We Deliver, Support and Inspire  
Question 6 We are Innovative and Open Minded  

Overall Score  

 11 Page 86



Competency and Values Framework (CVF) 
 
We are Emotionally Aware L3 
 

• I seek to understand the longer-term reasons for organisational behaviour. This enables me 
to adapt and change organisational cultures when appropriate. 

• I actively ensure a supportive organisational culture that recognises and values diversity and 
wellbeing and challenges intolerance. 

• I understand internal and external politics and I am able to wield influence effectively, tailoring 
my actions to achieve the impact needed. 

• I am able to see things from a variety of perspectives and I use this knowledge to challenge 
my own thinking, values and assumptions. 

• I ensure that all perspectives inform decision making and communicate the reasons behind 
decisions in a way that is clear and compelling. 

We Take Ownership L3 
• I act as a role model, and enable the organisation to use instances when things go wrong as 

an opportunity to learn rather than blame.  

• I foster a culture of personal responsibility, encouraging and supporting others to make their 
own decisions and take ownership of their activities.  

• I define and enforce the standards and processes that will help this to happen.  

• I put in place measures that will allow others to take responsibility effectively when I delegate 
decision making, and at the same time I help them to improve their performance.  

• I create the circumstances (culture and process) that will enable people to undertake 
development opportunities and improve their performance.  

• I take an organisation-wide view, acknowledging where improvements can be made and 
taking responsibility for making these happen. 

 
We are Collaborative L3 

• I am politically aware and I understand formal and informal politics at the national level and 
what this means for our partners. This allows me to create long-term links and work effectively 
within decision-making structures.  

• I remove practical barriers to collaboration to enable others to take practical steps in building 
relationships outside the organisation and in other sectors (public, not for profit, and private).  

• I take the lead in partnerships when appropriate and set the way in which partner 
organisations from all sectors interact with the police. This allows the police to play a major 
role in the delivery of services to communities.  

• I create an environment where partnership working flourishes and creates tangible benefits 
for all. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 12 Page 87



We Deliver, Support and Inspire L3 
 

• I challenge myself and others to bear in mind the police service’s vision to provide the best 
possible service in every decision made.  

• I communicate how the overall vision links to specific plans and objectives so that people are 
motivated and clearly understand our goals.  

• I ensure that everyone understands their role in helping the police service to achieve this 
vision.  

• I anticipate and identify organisational barriers that stop the police service from meeting its 
goals, by putting in place contingencies or removing these.  

• I monitor changes in the external environment, taking actions to influence where possible to 
ensure positive outcomes.  

• I demonstrate long-term strategic thinking, going beyond personal goals and considering how 
the police service operates in the broader societal and economic environment.  

• I ensure that my decisions balance the needs of my own force/unit with those of the wider 
police service and external partners.  

• I motivate and inspire others to deliver challenging goals 
 
We are Innovative and Open Minded L3 
 

• I balance risks, costs and benefits associated with decisions, thinking about the wider impact 
and how actions are seen in that context. I think through ‘what if’ scenarios.  

• I use discretion wisely in making decisions, knowing when the ‘tried and tested’ is not always 
the most appropriate and being willing to challenge the status quo when beneficial.  

• I seek to identify the key reasons or incidents behind issues, even in ambiguous or unclear 
situations.  

• I use my knowledge of the wider external environment and long-term situations to inform 
effective decision making.  

• I acknowledge that some decisions may represent a significant change. I think about the best 
way to introduce such decisions and win support. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 13 Page 88



Feedback  
 

Strengths 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Areas for Development  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 14 Page 89



From: Helen Brunjes  
Sent: 12 September 2021 15:18 
To: 'chrisbnoble@gmail.com' <chrisbnoble@gmail.com>; 'chris.noble@humberside.pnn.police.uk' 
<chris.noble@humberside.pnn.police.uk> 
Subject: Staffordshire Chief Constable Vacancy - Panels / Interviews  
 
Dear Chris 
 
Further to my email earlier this week regarding your successes in being shortlisted 
for the above position, I am now in a position to confirm further details with you. 
Please see below.  
 
 
Stakeholder/ Staff Panel:  
 
Date: 20 September 2021  
Time: 1300  HRS  
Location: Staffordshire Police Headquarters, Weston Road, Stafford, ST18 0YY. On 
arrival please report to reception which is located in block 7. Please ask for Helen 
Brunjes / Pippa Carnevale-Coggins. Please can I ask that you arrive at least 15 
minutes before the process is due to start.  
 
 
The Stakeholder panel will consist of representation from, Stoke on Trent City 
Council, Staffordshire County Council. Staffordshire Fire and Rescue and 
Staffordshire University. The Staff panel will include representation from Internal 
departments and Staff Associations.  
 
You will take part in two panels; one with staff and the other with the stakeholder 
group. So that you can prepare in advance of the above date, please find below the 
subject matters you will be required to brief the panels on.  You will allowed 10 
minutes to brief the panels and they will then have 20-30 minutes to ask you 
questions. You can present verbally or if you would like to use presenting tools 
please let me know.  
  
  
Staff Panel Briefing Topic: 
 
What do you see as the key challenges facing policing over the next 5 years both 
locally and nationally and how will you ensure that the force is adequately prepared 
to meet these?  
 
  
Stakeholder Panel Briefing Topic:  
 
How will you ensure that Staffordshire Police work collaboratively with strategic 
partners, key stakeholders and our communities to deliver a more preventative 
approach to policing 
  
 

Page 90

mailto:chrisbnoble@gmail.com
mailto:chris.noble@humberside.pnn.police.uk


It is anticipated that this part the process will take no more than 90 minutes 
  
Formal Interview and Presentation  
 
Date: 21 September 2021  
Time: 1400 HRS 
Location: Staffordshire Police Headquarters, Weston Road, Stafford, ST18 0YY. On 
arrival please report to reception which is located in block 7. Please ask for Helen 
Brunjes. Please can I ask that you arrive at least 15 minutes before the process is 
due to start.  
 
Presentation Subject  
 
Please describe your longer term vision/ambition for Staffordshire Police and what, 
as chief constable, you will do to achieve this.  
 
(In developing your presentation for the interview panel, the SCO has requested that 
you ‘be brave’ in your approach and focus on what you want to do in Staffs so please 
prepare and feel confident to share your vision and aspirations) 
 
  
You will have 10 Minutes to present to the panel and the panel will then have a 
further 20 -30 minutes to ask you questions around your presentation. PowerPoint 
facility will be available for you to use. If you require any other presenting tools 
please can you advice ASAP. Once the presentation stage has concluded you will 
move onto the formal Interview stage of the process. Your presentation will need to 
be sent to Graham Bradley,  Graham.Bradley@staffordshire.pnn.police.uk by no 
later than 1700 hrs on Friday 17 September 2021.  
 
it is anticipated that this part the process will take no more than 2 Hour.  
 
In terms of dress code it is not necessary for you to wear your tunics, and if your 
current role does not require you to wear a uniform your normal smart wear will be 
acceptable.  
 
Whilst you are on site you will be required to wear a face mask, which can be 
removed whilst you are seated and during all stages of the assessment process.  
 
I would appreciate if you could confirm your attendance and identify if you require 
any additional support or special requirements being made.  
 
Please do not hesitate to contact me if you have any further questions.  
 
 
Kind regards, 
 
Helen Brunjes  
People Services  

Page 91

mailto:Graham.Bradley@staffordshire.pnn.police.uk


 
Recruiting – Police Promotions / Police Transferee / Internal Police Vacancies  
Staffordshire Police | Staffordshire Fire and Rescue Service 
Phone: 01785 234077       Mobile: 07793389510 
 
 

Page 92



Staffordshire Chief Constable Recruitment 
2021 
Staff Panel Exercise Pack 
Version number 1.0 

 

Page 93



Official - Sensitive 
Staff Panel  college.police.uk 

The Task 
You will be meeting with candidates for the role of Staffordshire Chief Constable. 

This exercise is an opportunity for candidates to be tested by staff they will most 

likely be working with if appointed and explore the key issues and challenges they 

are likely to face.  

Candidates have been asked to come and meet with you and provide an initial 

briefing in response to the following question: 

What do you see as the key challenges facing policing over the next 5 
years both locally and nationally and how will you ensure that the force 
is adequately prepared to meet these?  

Candidates will have 10 minutes to give their briefing to you and this will be followed 

by 30 minutes of questions from the panel to explore the briefing or additional issues 

of interest. 

  

September 2021 Official - Sensitive Page 2 of 8 
Page 94



Official - Sensitive 
Staff Panel  college.police.uk 

Timetable 

0900 Panel Arrival 

0915 - 1000 Panel Briefing 

1000 - 1040 Candidate 2 

1040 - 1100 Candidate 2 Debrief 

1100 - 1140 Candidate 1 

1140 - 1200 Candidate 1 Debrief 

1200 - 1300 Lunch 

1300 - 1340 Candidate 4 

1340 - 1400 Candidate 4 Debrief 

1400 - 1440 Candidate 3 

1440 - 1500 Candidate 3 Debrief 

1500 Panel Departure 

 

Administration 
The chair will be responsible for ensuring the smooth running of the exercise and 

ensuring all panel members have the opportunity to ask any questions they may 

have, and have these addressed within the time constraints of the exercise. The 

chair will be responsible for ensuring that each panel member receives equal time for 

questions and will ensure the exercise does not under or overrun.  

September 2021 Official - Sensitive Page 3 of 8 
Page 95



Official - Sensitive 
Staff Panel  college.police.uk 

During the exercise 
Your panel facilitator will show the candidate into the room and introduce the 

candidate to the panel using their preferred name. The chair should ask the 

candidate to take a seat and introduce themselves and the members of the panel. 

To ensure all candidates are assessed in a consistent way, the chair should ensure 

that all candidates are given the same information. An example script incorporating 

this information is outlined later in this exercise pack. The chair may amend this to fit 

with their personal style but the same information should be conveyed to each 

candidate. 

This is not a presentation so candidates do not need to stand up, although if they are 

more comfortable doing so then this will be ok. Some candidates may bring formal 

presentations or visual aids to use during the exercise and they are permitted to refer 

to any notes they make. 

During the exercise panel members should make as many notes as they feel is 

appropriate to assist them in evaluating a candidate’s performance at the end of the 

exercise. Please ensure notes are factual and accurate and restricted to what the 

candidate said or did as any paperwork produced during the process, including your 

notes can be disclosed to candidates under the General Data Protection Regulations 

2018. At the end of the exercise your panel facilitator will collect all your notes to 

ensure they are securely disposed. 

 

  

September 2021 Official - Sensitive Page 4 of 8 
Page 96



Official - Sensitive 
Staff Panel  college.police.uk 

Questioning 
The panel should ask questions to seek further information or clarification from the 

candidate. It is advisable to adopt a style of questioning that is supportive and non-

aggressive; it is the questions that should be challenging, not the style of 

questioning. 

Specific questions have not been provided as the panel will need to tailor their 

questions to each individual candidate and their initial briefing. However, the panel 

may find it helpful to consider in advance the kind of questions that may be helpful 

and some examples of useful general probing questions have been provided below 

as a reminder. 

• What problems can you foresee….? 
• What will your role be….? 
• What will you do….? 
• Why will you do….? 
• How will you….? 
• How will x help you achieve y? 
• What factors will you consider? 
• What other alternatives could you consider? 
• What difficulties do you think you will encounter? 
• How will you overcome these difficulties? 
• What outcome will you seek? 
• How will you know you have been successful? 
• Have you had any experience of doing this in your work to date? 

‘Closed questions’ may be appropriate to seek clarification from a candidate on a 

specific point. 

During the recruitment process, the following issues and challenges that the future 

Chief Constable will face have been identified. The panel may also wish to explore 

these during the exercise 

• How the candidate will transform and modernise the service to meet local and 
national challenges 

• How the candidate will work with partners and the commissioner to ensure 
mutually beneficial outcomes for the communities of Staffordshire 

• How the candidate will engage and inspire their staff to meet the challenges 
facing the service and implement significant organisational change 

• How the candidate will create a trusting and empowering culture in their staff 

 

September 2021 Official - Sensitive Page 5 of 8 
Page 97



Official - Sensitive 
Staff Panel  college.police.uk 

After the exercise 
This exercise is designed to provide the candidate with an opportunity to share with 

you their understanding of key issues and their motivation for the role. Your feedback 

will help inform the interview panel of additional areas to explore with candidates and 

inform their decision making. 

Following the conclusion of the exercise for each candidate the panel will provide 

feedback to the chair and the facilitator. As a panel you should consider the 

candidate’s performance in relation to how well you think they completed the 

exercise and responded to your questions. You may wish to consider: 

• How effectively the candidate’s initial briefing addressed the question posed? 

• Whether their responses reassured you that they understood the challenges 

facing the service and would be effective in leading the change required to 

face these and take staff with them? 

• How their responses would be received in your organisation/s? 

• What the candidate did which enhanced their performance and suitability for 

the role? 

• What the candidate did that detracted from their performance and suitability 

for the role? 

• How their performance matched with what you would expect from the future 

Chief Constable? 

 

 

  

September 2021 Official - Sensitive Page 6 of 8 
Page 98



Official - Sensitive 
Staff Panel  college.police.uk 

Example chair script 
“Good morning/afternoon. Please take a seat whilst I explain what will happen. 
As you will be aware this is the staff panel exercise. First of all I would like to 
introduce the panel to you. I am XXX and will be the chair for this exercise. 
With me are my colleagues XXX.” 

The chair should introduce anyone else in the room and explain they are there to 

observe the process and will not take part in the exercise and then say: 

“You have 10 minutes to give us your briefing and we will then have 30 
minutes in which to ask you questions, this time will be split between us. Do 
you have any questions before we start?” 

The chair should answer any questions and then ask the candidate to start their 

briefing.  After 10 minutes if the candidate has not completed their briefing ask them 

to stop and then say: 

“We would now like to ask you some questions about your briefing. If we ask 
you a question you are unsure about please ask us to clarify or repeat it. 
Please also take a moment to consider your answer before responding if you 
wish.” 

The chair should ask the panel member to ask their first question and manage the 

panel’s questioning of the candidate. After 30 minutes, please say: 

“Thank you for your responses. That is the end of our questions. Just before 
we finish, can I ask if there’s anything that my colleagues want to clarify?” 

Chair to pause for the panel members to ask any final questions. If the chair has any 

final questions then they should ask them at this point and then say: 

“Is there anything you would like to ask us or clarify from our meeting today?” 

Pause for the candidate to clarify anything and for the panel to respond to this and 

then say: 

“That completes the staff panel exercise, thank you for your time, you may 
now leave.” 

  

September 2021 Official - Sensitive Page 7 of 8 
Page 99



Official - Sensitive 
Staff Panel  college.police.uk 

 

About the College 

We’re the professional body for the police service in 

England and Wales. 

Working together with everyone in policing, we share 

the skills and knowledge officers and staff need to 

prevent crime and keep people safe. 

We set the standards in policing to build and 

preserve public trust and we help those in policing 

develop the expertise needed to meet the demands 

of today and prepare for the challenges of the future. 

college.police.uk 

September 2021 Official - Sensitive Page 8 of 8 
Page 100



Staffordshire Chief Constable Recruitment 
2021 
Stakeholder Panel Exercise Pack 
Version number 1.0 

 

Page 101



Official - Sensitive 
Stakeholder Panel  college.police.uk 

The task 
You will be meeting with candidates for the role of Staffordshire Chief Constable. 

This exercise is an opportunity for candidates to be tested by stakeholders they will 

most likely be working with if appointed and explore the key issues and challenges 

they are likely to face.  

Candidates have been asked to come and meet with you and provide an initial 

briefing in response to the following question: 

How will you ensure that Staffordshire Police work collaboratively with 
strategic partners, key stakeholders and our communities to deliver a 
more preventative approach to policing? 

Candidates will have 10 minutes to give their briefing to you and this will be followed 

by 30 minutes of questions from the panel to explore the briefing or additional issues 

of interest. 

  

September 2021 Official - Sensitive Page 2 of 8 
Page 102



Official - Sensitive 
Stakeholder Panel  college.police.uk 

Timetable 

0900 Panel Arrival 

0915 - 1000 Panel Briefing 

1000 - 1040 Candidate 1 

1040 - 1100 Candidate 1 Debrief 

1100 - 1140 Candidate 2 

1140 - 1200 Candidate 2 Debrief 

1200 - 1300 Lunch 

1300 - 1340 Candidate 3 

1340 - 1400 Candidate 3 Debrief 

1400 - 1440 Candidate 4 

1440 - 1500 Candidate 4 Debrief 

1500 Panel Departure 

 

Administration 
The chair will be responsible for ensuring the smooth running of the exercise and 

ensuring all panel members have the opportunity to ask any questions they may 

have, and have these addressed within the time constraints of the exercise. The 

chair will be responsible for ensuring that each panel member receives equal time for 

questions and will ensure the exercise does not under or overrun.  

September 2021 Official - Sensitive Page 3 of 8 
Page 103



Official - Sensitive 
Stakeholder Panel  college.police.uk 

During the exercise 
Your panel facilitator will show the candidate into the room and introduce the 

candidate to the panel using their preferred name. The chair should ask the 

candidate to take a seat and introduce themselves and the members of the panel. 

To ensure all candidates are assessed in a consistent way, the chair should ensure 

that all candidates are given the same information. An example script incorporating 

this information is outlined later in this exercise pack. The chair may amend this to fit 

with their personal style but the same information should be conveyed to each 

candidate. 

This is not a presentation so candidates do not need to stand up, although if they are 

more comfortable doing so then this will be ok. Some candidates may bring formal 

presentations or visual aids to use during the exercise and they are permitted to refer 

to any notes they make. 

During the exercise panel members should make as many notes as they feel is 

appropriate to assist them in evaluating a candidate’s performance at the end of the 

exercise. Please ensure notes are factual and accurate and restricted to what the 

candidate said or did as any paperwork produced during the process, including your 

notes can be disclosed to candidates under the General Data Protection Regulations 

2018. At the end of the exercise your panel facilitator will collect all your notes to 

ensure they are securely disposed. 

 

  

September 2021 Official - Sensitive Page 4 of 8 
Page 104



Official - Sensitive 
Stakeholder Panel  college.police.uk 

Questioning 
The panel should ask questions to seek further information or clarification from the 

candidate. It is advisable to adopt a style of questioning that is supportive and non-

aggressive; it is the questions that should be challenging, not the style of 

questioning. 

Specific questions have not been provided as the panel will need to tailor their 

questions to each individual candidate and their initial briefing. However, the panel 

may find it helpful to consider in advance the kind of questions that may be helpful 

and some examples of useful general probing questions have been provided below 

as a reminder. 

• What problems can you foresee….? 
• What will your role be….? 
• What will you do….? 
• Why will you do….? 
• How will you….? 
• How will x help you achieve y? 
• What factors will you consider? 
• What other alternatives could you consider? 
• What difficulties do you think you will encounter? 
• How will you overcome these difficulties? 
• What outcome will you seek? 
• How will you know you have been successful? 
• Have you had any experience of doing this in your work to date? 

‘Closed questions’ may be appropriate to seek clarification from a candidate on a 

specific point. 

During the recruitment process, the following issues and challenges that the future 

Chief Constable will face have been identified. The panel may also wish to explore 

these during the exercise 

• How the candidate will transform and modernise the service to meet local and 
national challenges 

• How the candidate will work with partners and the commissioner to ensure 
mutually beneficial outcomes for the communities of Staffordshire 

• How the candidate will engage and inspire their staff to meet the challenges 
facing the service and implement significant organisational change 

• How the candidate will create a trusting and empowering culture in their staff 

 

September 2021 Official - Sensitive Page 5 of 8 
Page 105



Official - Sensitive 
Stakeholder Panel  college.police.uk 

After the exercise 
This exercise is designed to provide the candidate with an opportunity to share with 

you their understanding of key issues and their motivation for the role. Your feedback 

will help inform the interview panel of additional areas to explore with candidates and 

inform their decision making. 

Following the conclusion of the exercise for each candidate the panel will provide 

feedback to the chair and the facilitator. As a panel you should consider the 

candidate’s performance in relation to how well you think they completed the 

exercise and responded to your questions. You may wish to consider: 

• How effectively the candidate’s initial briefing addressed the question posed? 

• Whether their responses reassured you that they understood the issues 

associated with effective collaboration and would be effective in addressing 

these? 

• How their responses would be received in your organisation/s? 

• What the candidate did which enhanced their performance and suitability for 

the role? 

• What the candidate did that detracted from their performance and suitability 

for the role? 

• How their performance matched with what you would expect from the future 

Chief Constable? 

 

 

  

September 2021 Official - Sensitive Page 6 of 8 
Page 106



Official - Sensitive 
Stakeholder Panel  college.police.uk 

Example chair script 
“Good morning/afternoon. Please take a seat whilst I explain what will happen. 
As you will be aware this is the stakeholder panel exercise. First of all I would 
like to introduce the panel to you. I am XXX and will be the chair for this 
exercise. With me are my colleagues XXX.” 

The chair should introduce anyone else in the room and explain they are there to 

observe the process and will not take part in the exercise and then say: 

“You have 10 minutes to give us your briefing and we will then have 30 
minutes in which to ask you questions, this time will be split between us. Do 
you have any questions before we start?” 

The chair should answer any questions and then ask the candidate to start their 

briefing.  After 10 minutes if the candidate has not completed their briefing ask them 

to stop and then say: 

“We would now like to ask you some questions about your briefing. If we ask 
you a question you are unsure about please ask us to clarify or repeat it. 
Please also take a moment to consider your answer before responding if you 
wish.” 

The chair should ask the panel member to ask their first question and manage the 

panel’s questioning of the candidate. After 30 minutes, please say: 

“Thank you for your responses. That is the end of our questions. Just before 
we finish, can I ask if there’s anything that my colleagues want to clarify?” 

Chair to pause for the panel members to ask any final questions. If the chair has any 

final questions then they should ask them at this point and then say: 

“Is there anything you would like to ask us or clarify from our meeting today?” 

Pause for the candidate to clarify anything and for the panel to respond to this and 

then say: 

“That completes the stakeholder panel exercise, thank you for your time, you 
may now leave.” 

  

September 2021 Official - Sensitive Page 7 of 8 
Page 107



Official - Sensitive 
Stakeholder Panel  college.police.uk 

 

About the College 

We’re the professional body for the police service in 

England and Wales. 

Working together with everyone in policing, we share 

the skills and knowledge officers and staff need to 

prevent crime and keep people safe. 

We set the standards in policing to build and 

preserve public trust and we help those in policing 

develop the expertise needed to meet the demands 

of today and prepare for the challenges of the future. 

college.police.uk 

September 2021 Official - Sensitive Page 8 of 8 
Page 108



 

Chief Constable – Presentation  

Formal Presentation to Interview Panel 

 

 

The candidate has 10 Minutes to present followed by 20 minutes of questions from the panel.  

Subject  

Please describe your longer-term vision/ambition for Staffordshire Police and what, as chief 
constable, you will do to achieve this.  

(In developing your presentation for the interview panel, the SCO has requested that you ‘be 
brave’ in your approach and focus on what you want to do in Staffs so please prepare and feel 
confident to share your vision and aspirations) 

 

Notes 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Candidate name: 
 

 

Date: 
 

 

Panel member: 
 

 

Page 109



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

Page 110



 

 

Please use the scoring criteria below to evaluate the candidate’s responses.  

 

 

Overall Score  

 

Feedback 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Scoring Sheet 
Score Definition 
1 Evidence is vague, with serious shortcomings in the quality of 

the response provided.  Overall response falls below the 
required standard. 

2 Evidence is limited. Responses were patchy and below that 
expected. 

3 Evidence is moderate, and the responses provided are at the 
minimum level expected.  

4 Evidence and responses are good and well structured, 
demonstrating good knowledge.  

5 Evidence and responses are excellent and beyond that 
expected. 
 

Page 111



 

Page 112


	Agenda
	3 Confirmation Hearing Procedure
	4 10 am Consideration of the proposed appointment to the post of Chief Fire Officer for Staffordshire
	Chief Fire Officer Appendices 1 -7
	Appendix 1 Chief Fire Officer Role Profile_fv
	Appendix 2 Chief Fire Officer Information pack_fv
	Appendix 3 Chief Fire Officer Advert_fv
	Chief Fire Officer / Head of Paid Service of Staffordshire Fire and Rescue Service

	Appendix 4 Shortlisting Matrix for Chief Fire Officer
	Appendix 5 Rob Barber Invite to Interview
	From: Helen Brunjes  Sent: 25 August 2021 18:12 To: URob.barber@staffordshirefire.gov.ukU Subject: Staffordshire Chief Fire Officer - Shortlisting Result

	Appendix 6 Chief Fire Officer Presentation
	Appendix 7 Chief Fire Officer Interview Questions _


	5 11 am Consideration of the proposed appointment to the post of Chief Constable for Staffordshire
	Chief Constable - Appendices 1 to 9
	Appendix 1 Chief Constable SP role profile_fv
	Appendix 2 Chief Constable Candidate Information Pack_fv
	Appendix 3 Chief Constable Advert_fv
	Appendix 4 Chief Constable shortlisting Criteria
	Appendix 5 Chief Constable Interview
	During the interview:
	After the interview:
	When the candidate has left the room
	Close – 1 minute
	 Confirm that this is the end of the interview & ask the candidate if they have any questions

	Appendix 6 Chris Noble Invite to Interview
	From: Helen Brunjes  Sent: 12 September 2021 15:18 To: 'chrisbnoble@gmail.com' <Uchrisbnoble@gmail.comU>; 'chris.noble@humberside.pnn.police.uk' <chris.noble@humberside.pnn.police.uk> Subject: Staffordshire Chief Constable Vacancy - Panels / Interviews

	Appendix 7 Staff Panel Exercise Pack_1.0
	The Task
	Timetable
	Administration
	During the exercise
	Questioning
	After the exercise
	Example chair script

	Appendix 8 Stakeholder Panel Exercise Pack_1.0
	The task
	Timetable
	Administration
	During the exercise
	Questioning
	After the exercise
	Example chair script

	Appendix 9 Chief Constable Presentation



